
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
OCTOBER 23, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

October 23, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Dr. J. Harold Ellens – First Presbyterian 
Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Proclamation Celebrating 60 Years – Presented to John Drew, Vice President 
and Regional Manager for Kelly Services............................................................. 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Request for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Grid4 
Communications, 2107 Crooks Road, Troy MI 48084-5534 1 

C-2 Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) to Grid4 Communications, 2107 Crooks Road, Troy MI 48084-5534 2 

C-3 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z 714) – Proposed The Enclave Senior 
Housing, North of Long Lake between Livernois and Crooks, Section 9 – R-1B to 
R-EC 3 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 No Postponed Items 3 

CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 3 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 4 

a) Celebrating 60 Years – Kelly Services ................................................................. 4 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 4 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 
Specifications – Seasonal Requirements of Grass Seed and Hydro Seeding 
Mulch/Fertilizer ..................................................................................................... 4 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Service Contract – CLEMIS 
Fire Records Management System ...................................................................... 5 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – One (1) 60,000 
GVW Tandem Combination Sewer and Catch Basin Cleaning Machine, Less 
Trade-In................................................................................................................ 5 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bid – Vehicle Wash 
Services................................................................................................................ 5 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Concrete 
Pavement Repair.................................................................................................. 5 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Appraisal Services – 
John R Improvement Projects, Long Lake to Square Lake, and Square Lake 
to South Boulevard ............................................................................................... 6 

E-5 Macy*s Fireworks Permit Application 6 

E-6 Request for Acceptance of Six Warranty Deeds for Caswell Town Center PUD 5, 
Section 2 6 

E-7 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 7 



 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 7 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 7 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic 
District Commission; Municipal Building Authority; Parks & Recreation Board; Troy 
Daze Committee 7 

F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host – Annual Appreciation 
Banquets 9 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 10 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 10 

a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 227) – Articles XXII, 
XXIII, XXIV and XXVIII – Ambulance Facilities in the B-3, H-S, O-1 and M-1 
Districts – November 13, 2006 ........................................................................... 10 

b) Street Vacation (File Number: SV 148-C) – Portions of Daley Street abutting 
Lots 28 and 33 of Supervisors Plat No. 11 Subdivision, South of Big Beaver, 
North of I-75, Section 26 – November 13, 2006 ................................................. 10 

c) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5933 Diamond – November 27, 2006 ................. 10 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 10 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 10 

H-1 No Council Referrals 10 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 10 

I-1  No Council Comments 10 

REPORTS: 10 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 10 

a) Library Advisory Board/Final – June 29, 2006.................................................... 10 
b) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – July 10, 2006............................................... 10 
c) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – August 14, 2006.......................................... 10 



 

 

d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 13, 
2006 ................................................................................................................... 10 

e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – September 26, 2006 ..................... 10 
f) Troy Youth Council/Draft – September 27, 2006................................................ 10 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – October 4, 2006 .................................. 10 
h) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – October 11, 2006.... 10 

J-2 Department Reports: 10 

a) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – September 30, 2006 .......................... 10 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 11 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 11 

J-5  Calendar 11 

J-6  Preliminary Report from the Historic Homes Study Committee Concerning the 
Charlene Harris-Freeman and Carl Freeman Property 11 

STUDY ITEMS: 11 

K-1 Ethics Policy 11 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 11 

CLOSED SESSION: 11 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 11 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 12 

Monday, November 13, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 12 
Monday, November 27, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 12 
Monday, December 4, 2006 Regular City Council ................................................ 12 
Monday, December 18, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 12 
Monday, January 8, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................... 12 
Monday, January 22, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................. 12 
Monday, February 5, 2007 Regular City Council................................................... 12 
Wednesday, February 7, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing)  Regular City Council.. 12 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Dr. J. Harold Ellens – First 
Presbyterian Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Proclamation Celebrating 60 Years – Presented to John Drew, Vice President and 

Regional Manager for Kelly Services    
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Request for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Grid4 
Communications, 2107 Crooks Road, Troy MI 48084-5534 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial 
Development District (IDD) for Grid4 Communications, for property known as 2701 Crooks, 
Troy, MI. 48084-5534, Parcel # 88-20-29-426-046, in accordance with City Council Policy 
Resolution #2006-06-238; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD a copy of this resolution to 
the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

C-2 Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) to Grid4 Communications, 2107 Crooks Road, Troy MI 48084-5534 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on October 
23, 2006, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 2107 
Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-5534, Parcel # 88-20-29-426-046;  
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Grid4 Communications for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 2107 Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-
5534, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on October 23, 
2006, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Grid4 
Communications at 2107 Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-5534 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that it has FOUND 
THAT THE GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Grid4 
Communications, at 2107 Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-5534 shall not substantially impede the 
operation of the City of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial 
soundness of the city of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the application for an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC) fro Grid4 Communications at 2107 Crooks, Troy, MI 48084-5534, Parcel #88-
20-29-426-046, be hereby APPROVED for personal property for a term of twelve (12) years, 
CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Grid4 
Communications, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Grid4 Communications, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

C-3 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z 714) – Proposed The Enclave Senior 
Housing, North of Long Lake between Livernois and Crooks, Section 9 – R-1B to 
R-EC 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1B to R-EC rezoning request located north of Long Lake, between 
Livernois and Crooks in Section 9, being 8.61 acres in size, is described in the following legal 
description and illustrated on the ATTACHED Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, W 1/2 of the SE ¼ of Section 9 
 
Lots 95 through 102 and Lots 105 through 112 both inclusive, all being part of Beaver 
Hills Subdivision (Liber 26, Page 18, of Oakland County Records).  Containing 8.61 ac., 
more or less, and subject to easements and restrictions of record. 

 
RESOLVED, That the application DOES NOT COMPLY with the intent of the Future Land Use 
Plan and DOES NOT MEET the location standards of Section 19.40.00 of Chapter 39; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DENIES the proposed 
rezoning, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of October 16, 
2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation be APPROVED: 
 
a) Celebrating 60 Years – Kelly Services  
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Seasonal Requirements of Grass Seed and Hydro Seeding 
Mulch/Fertilizer      

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to purchase grass seed and hydro-seeding mulch/fertilizer for the 
2007 season are hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidders meeting specifications as follows: 
 

VENDORS      ITEM(S) 
John Deere Landscapes of Armada, MI   1,2,3,4,5,6 
 
Tri-Turf of Farmington Hills, MI   7,9 
 
Washington Elevator Co, Inc of    8 
   Washington Township  

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

for an estimated total cost of $16,126.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
September 27, 2006, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Service Contract – CLEMIS Fire 

Records Management System      
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That a five-year proprietary interlocal service agreement with Oakland County for 
participation in the Oakland County Fire Records Management System is hereby APPROVED 
at an estimated total cost of $18,025.00 expiring December 31, 2009. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – One (1) 60,000 GVW 

Tandem Combination Sewer and Catch Basin Cleaning Machine, Less Trade-In      
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase one (1) 60,000 GVW tandem combination sewer and 
catch basin cleaning machine, less trade-in is hereby AWARDED to the low total bidder, Jack 
Doheny Supplies, Inc., of Northville, MI, for $299,500.00 less trade-in of $115,000.00 for an 
estimated net total cost of $184,500.00. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bid – Vehicle Wash Services      
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That all bid proposals for ITB-COT 06-46, to provide two-year requirements of City 
vehicle wash services with an option to renew for an additional two years, opened September 
13, 2006 are hereby REJECTED and will be re-bid. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Concrete Pavement 

Repair      
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to complete the concrete pavement repair program for 2006/07 
with an option to renew for one (1) additional year are hereby AWARDED to the three lowest 
bidders, Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. of Westland for proposal A, A-1 – Local Roads, Six-S, Inc. of 
Waterford for proposal B – Major Roads, and Major Cement Company of Detroit, MI, proposal 
C – Industrial Roads at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 10, 2006, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting not to exceed 
budgetary limitations; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Appraisal Services – John 

R Improvement Projects, Long Lake to Square Lake, and Square Lake to South 
Boulevard      

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide appraisal services for John R Improvement Projects, 
Long Lake to Square Lake, and Square Lake to South Boulevard is hereby AWARDED to 
Andrew Reed & Associates, Inc. of Berkley, MI, the lowest priced and highest scoring 
respondent as a result of a Best Value process, which the Troy City Council DETERMINES to 
be in the public interest at an estimated cost of $36,500.00, plus $150.00 per hour for any 
required updates not to exceed 45% of the original appraisal cost for updates; and $150.00 per 
hour plus reasonable expenses for testifying at trial, if necessary; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
E-5 Macy*s Fireworks Permit Application 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That a fireworks permit be ISSUED to Zambelli Fireworks, Inc., of New Castle, 
PA, for the display of fireworks at Macy*s at the Oakland Mall on November 10, 2006. 
 
E-6 Request for Acceptance of Six Warranty Deeds for Caswell Town Center PUD 5, 

Section 2 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the six Warranty Deeds from owners of property: Joseph Petruzzello, as 
Trustee or his Successor Trustee(s) under Agreement dated October 27, 1999 having Sidwell 
#88-20-02-101-001 & 003; Joseph  and Josephine Petruzzello having Sidwell # 88-20-02-101-
004; Genesis Real Estate Investment, LLC having Sidwell #88-20-02-101-008 & 009; and, Gary 
F. and Brenda Abitheira having Sidwell #88-20-02-101-002 are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

E-7 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request that the City transfer Municipal Credit funds in the amount of 
$76,084.00 and Community Credit funds in the amount of $99,087.00 to Troy Medi-Go Plus for 
the operation of transportation service for senior citizens and persons with disabilities is hereby 
APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic 
District Commission; Municipal Building Authority; Parks & Recreation Board; 
Troy Daze Committee     

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  
Appointed by Mayor (5) – 4 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 06/30/07 
 
 Unexpired Term 06/30/08 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
 Term Expires 11/01/09 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

Appointed by Council (9) – 3 &/or 2 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07   (Student) 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board  
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 
NOTE: Troy Daze Committee to forward recommendation Term Expires 11/30/06 
 
Troy Daze Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/09 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/09 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host – Annual Appreciation 

Banquets   
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That _____________________ WILL ACT as Master of Ceremonies and Official 
Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for the Annual 2007 Boards 
& Committees Appreciation Banquet (February 10, 2007); and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That ________________________ WILL ACT as Master of 
Ceremonies and Official Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for 
the Annual 2007 Fire Fighters Appreciation Banquet (May 19, 2007). 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 227) – Articles XXII, XXIII, 

XXIV and XXVIII – Ambulance Facilities in the B-3, H-S, O-1 and M-1 Districts – 
November 13, 2006  

b) Street Vacation (File Number: SV 148-C) – Portions of Daley Street abutting Lots 28 and 
33 of Supervisors Plat No. 11 Subdivision, South of Big Beaver, North of I-75, Section 26 
– November 13, 2006  

c) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5933 Diamond – November 27, 2006    
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments  
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Library Advisory Board/Final – June 29, 2006 
b) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – July 10, 2006 
c) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – August 14, 2006 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 13, 2006 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – September 26, 2006  
f) Troy Youth Council/Draft – September 27, 2006 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – October 4, 2006 
h) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – October 11, 2006 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – September 30, 2006 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Preliminary Report from the Historic Homes Study Committee Concerning the 

Charlene Harris-Freeman and Carl Freeman Property  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Ethics Policy  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 23, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, November 13, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 27, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 4, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 18, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 8, 2007 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 22, 2007 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 5, 2007 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 7, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ........ Regular City Council 

 



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING 60 YEARS   

KELLY SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, Kelly Services, a Fortune 500 company and global provider of staffing solutions, 
recently celebrated its 60-year anniversary at the company’s world headquarters located at Big 
Beaver and Crooks Road on October 6, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, Kelly Services was founded in Detroit on October 7, 1946 by William Russell Kelly, who 
is widely credited with pioneering the temporary help industry.  The company operated initially as the 
Russell Kelly Office Service until 1957 when it was renamed Kelly Girl Service; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1966, they became Kelly Services, Inc. to reflect the broad range of staffing services 
provided by the company.  Kelly’s world headquarters have been located in Troy since 1978; and  
 
WHEREAS, Over the years, Kelly Services has grown steadily to meet the needs of its customers 
and has evolved from a United States focused company concentrating primarily on traditional office 
services into a global leader with a breadth of specialty businesses.  Among those specialty 
businesses are information technology, engineering, finance, law, science, education, healthcare and 
home care; and 
 
WHEREAS, Today, Kelly Services is the second largest staffing company in the United States, and 
fifth largest in the world with locations in all 50 states and 30 countries and territories.  Each year, 
Kelly provides employment to more than 700,000 employees and offers a variety of employment 
options from full-time and part-time positions to temporary-to-hire or direct hire;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate Kelly 
Services, Inc. on their 60th Anniversary of providing employment to more than 700,000 people 
across the nation and wish them continued success; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we also commend the Kelly Services organization for their long-
standing tradition of giving back to the community.  Kelly employees across the United States and 
around the world participate in various community charitable efforts including food, clothing and toy 
drives, as well as community service projects at local schools and women’s shelters.   
 
Presented this 23rd day of October 2006. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



 

 
 
October 23, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager - Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for Grid4 Communications, 2107 Crooks, Troy MI 48084-5534  
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Grid4 Communications is currently located at 900 Wilshire, Ste 310, in Troy.  They are a 

telecommunications, cable, and Internet service provider.  They have recently purchased the 
contracts of other firms, and are ready to expand their operations significantly.  In conjunction with 
Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) grants, they are seeking (and MEGA requires) a 
local match to facilitate their ability to stay in Michigan, and more particularly, Troy. 

 
Our requested local match is for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to be issued 
by the City of Troy (application attached).  This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as 
amended) and local City policy.  As you will recall, this amounts to an approximate 50% reduction 
in personal property taxes that they would pay, over a twelve (12) year period (the total percent 
may be slightly higher or lower than 50%, depending on how much of the 6 mill State Education 
Tax the State levies). 
 
In order to grant the IFEC, an Industrial Development District (IDD) must first be established.  This 
District sets the boundaries wherein the exemption may exist. 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 
application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $750,000 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $54,844.35, of which $10,762.15 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $27,422.18 in total taxes, of which $5,381.07 would be 
saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the newly amended tax abatement policy of the City Council 

of the City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.  Grid4 Communications currently occupies 4,600 square feet on Wilshire Drive.  
They will be substantially renovating and filling a vacant 32,901 square foot building on Crooks, 
and increasing their employee base dramatically. 

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\Grid4\CouncilPakIDD PH 

















Market Value 750,000 687,525 572,983 429,795 286,587 167,224 83,645 34,872 11,633 2,912 486 41 0
50% of Value 375,000 343,763 286,492 214,897 143,294 83,612 41,823 17,436 5,817 1,456 243 20 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 343,763 286,492 214,897 143,294 83,612 41,823 17,436 5,817 1,456 243 20 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59500 $204.54 $170.46 $127.86 $85.26 $49.75 $24.88 $10.37 $3.46 $0.87 $0.14 $0.01 $0.00
County 4.64610 $1,597.15 $1,331.07 $998.43 $665.76 $388.47 $194.31 $81.01 $27.02 $6.76 $1.13 $0.09 $0.00

Int Schools 3.36900 $1,158.14 $965.19 $723.99 $482.76 $281.69 $140.90 $58.74 $19.60 $4.90 $0.82 $0.07 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $544.66 $453.92 $340.48 $227.03 $132.47 $66.26 $27.63 $9.22 $2.31 $0.39 $0.03 $0.00

State Ed 6.00000 $2,062.58 $1,718.95 $1,289.38 $859.76 $501.67 $250.94 $104.62 $34.90 $8.74 $1.46 $0.12 $0.00
School Op 18.00000 $6,187.73 $5,156.85 $3,868.15 $2,579.28 $1,505.01 $752.81 $313.85 $104.70 $26.21 $4.38 $0.37 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.13000 $1,419.74 $1,183.21 $887.53 $591.80 $345.32 $172.73 $72.01 $24.02 $6.01 $1.00 $0.08 $0.00

Admin 0.38310 $131.70 $109.75 $82.33 $54.90 $32.03 $16.02 $6.68 $2.23 $0.56 $0.09 $0.01 $0.00
City 9.45000 $3,248.56 $2,707.35 $2,030.78 $1,354.12 $790.13 $395.22 $164.77 $54.97 $13.76 $2.30 $0.19 $0.00
Total 48.15760 $16,554.78 $13,796.75 $10,348.94 $6,900.68 $4,026.54 $2,014.08 $839.67 $280.11 $70.11 $11.71 $0.98 $0.00

Total 12 Years $54,844.35
Total City 12 Yr $10,762.15

50% Total 12 Yr $27,422.18
50% Total City 12 $5,381.07 Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Grid4 Communications

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated











 
 

 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE  Contact: Michael Shore, MEDC  
 September 19, 2006 (517) 335-4590 

  

Granholm Announces Grid4 Communications to 
Expand in Troy, Create High-Tech Michigan Jobs 

Telecommunications Company Chooses Michigan for  
State-of-the-Art Data Center 

  

 Governor Jennifer M. Granholm today announced Grid4 Communications Inc. will invest 

$500,000 to expand its headquarters in Troy, including the installation of a state-of-the-art data 

center to support new products and services for Michigan businesses. The project will create 48 

new jobs, including 33 directly by the company. Assistance offered through the Michigan 

Economic Development Corporation helped convince the company to choose Michigan instead 

of competing sites in Florida and Texas. 

 “We are working every day to bring high-tech companies, and jobs, to Michigan,” 

Granholm said. “Grid4’s decision to invest and create these high-paying jobs in Michigan is 

further evidence that our comprehensive economic plan is beginning to pay dividends.” 

The MEDC approved a Single Business Tax credit valued at $501,000 over six years to 

win the company’s investment. The city of Troy has proposed a six-year tax abatement valued 

at $17,485 to support the project.  

  “This project will be mutually beneficial for both Grid4 and the state,” MEDC 

President and CEO James C. Epolito said. “Michigan’s deep pool of talented and educated 

workers will help the company succeed in a fiercely competitive global economy and in turn 

Grid4 will help strengthen the state’s high-tech infrastructure and entice more high-tech 

companies to choose Michigan.” 

An economic analysis conducted by the MEDC estimates that increased economic 

activity created by the expansions will generate an additional 15 indirect Michigan jobs, in 

addition to the 33 created directly by the company. The project is expected to generate more 

than $13 million in personal income for Michigan workers over the life of the tax credit.   

  

 

(more) 

 



Page 2 

 “Michigan represents a unique opportunity for high-tech competitive phone companies 

like Grid4,” Grid4 President and CEO Chris Hopkins said. “This data center build supported 

by the MEDC is a clear win for both Michigan businesses and residents in the selection of a 

communications provider and the creation of much-needed high-tech jobs. We want to thank 

the MEDC, Oakland County and the city of Troy for recognizing the value that high-tech 

companies like Grid4 bring to the state.”  

 The Grid4 Communications expansion is one of nine economic development projects 

the Governor announced today. In all, they are expected to create and retain a total of 1,009 

Michigan jobs. 

 Founded in 2001, Grid4 Communications is a Michigan-based, privately-held, 

facilities-based Competitive Local Exchange Carrier. The company delivers a host of retail and 

wholesale carrier class Next Generation IP Communication services including Voice over IP 

(VOIP), Hi-Speed Internet, Private Data Networking Services, Unified Communications and 

Managed Solutions for Business.     

  “Grid4 is just the kind of company we envisioned when we created the Emerging 

Sectors business development strategy,” Oakland County Executive L. Brooks Patterson said. 

“It is a growing technology company whose presence here increases our tax base and enhances 

our attractiveness as a business location while creating high-paying technical jobs for our 

residents. I'm thrilled for Troy and for Oakland County.” 

 In her 2006 State of the State address, Granholm emphasized the importance of making 

Michigan a global economic powerhouse in the 21st century. Since January 2005, the Governor 

and the MEDC have announced the creation or retention of more than 152,000 jobs as a result 

of targeted assistance provided by the MEDC. 

 “The city of Troy is very excited to partner with the state of Michigan, and Grid 4, to 

help to insure that this outstanding high-tech company is able to expand it’s facilities, increase 

the number of employees it has, and remain here in Troy, where so many other high-tech firms 

have chosen to do business,” Troy City Manager Phillip Nelson said. 

 The Michigan Economic Development Corporation, a partnership between the state 

and local communities, promotes smart economic growth by developing strategies and 

providing services to create and retain good jobs and a high quality of life. For more 

information on the Michigan Economic Development Corporation’s initiatives and programs, 

visit the Web site at www.michigan.org.  

 
(more) 

 
 

 



 
Page 3 

Grid4 Communications Inc. 
Economic Analysis 
Summary Estimates  

(All estimates in 2006 dollars) 

TOTAL JOBS CREATED   48 
 Direct   33 
 Indirect    15 
   
NET POSITIVE STATE REVENUE IMPACT $  565,000 
  Revenue Foregone   $ 501,000 

  Revenue Gain   $ 1,066,000 
 Average Weekly Wage   $ 1,276 
   
Personal Income Generated Over 
Life of the Seven-Year Tax Credit Agreement $ 13,845,000 

 
 
 

# # # 



F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and 
Headquarter Companies 

 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) 
encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that the following 
criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in the review 
of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial Development Districts 
(IDD) by the City Council: 
 

1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 
improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to be 
abated; and 

 
2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to be 
abated; and  

 
3) That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to prove 

by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in compliance with 
the basic guidelines established above. 

 
4) The applicant would document that they are Michigan Economic Growth Authority 

(MEGA) eligible, would be filling vacant Troy space, or will retain or expand the 
number of jobs in Troy. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting the 
aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by laws of the 
State of Michigan. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



Legal Description for Grid4 Communications property at 2107 Crooks, Troy, MI. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
88-20-29-426-046 
 
 
T2N, R11E, Sec 29 
Part of SE ¼ 
Beg at Pt Dist 
N 00-53-00 E 1,556.20 Ft & 
N 89-07-00 W 60.00 Ft 
From SE Sec Cor, 
Th N 89-07-00 W 402.90 Ft, 
Th N 00-41-00 E 290.53 Ft, 
Th S 87-49-00 E 404.10 Ft, 
Th S 00-53-00 W 281.36 Ft 
To Beg.   2.65A 
12/20/84 From –012, -013, & -014 



Page 1 of 1

10/10/2006http://gauss/output/TROY_GAUSS68243080121.PNG

licarila
Text Box
Parcel Map #88-20-29-426-046   2107 Crooks, Troy, MI

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line



Page 1 of 1

10/10/2006http://gauss/output/TROY_GAUSS68243080124.PNG

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Text Box
Ariel View #88-20-29-426-046   2107 Crooks, Troy, MI



October 10, 2006 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that no payment of any kind has been made or 
promised in exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption 
certificate application by the City of Troy, in regards to the application of                     
Grid4 Communications, at 2107 Crooks, Troy, Michigan. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between Grid4 Communications, (“Company”) and 
the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public 
Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), Grid4 Communications, understands that through its 
investment of $ 750,000 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is __ 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2008, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2008, Grid4 Communications will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) Grid4 Communications, agrees to remain within the City of 

Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
Grid4 Communications, further understands that if it chooses 
to leave the City of Troy without permission for relocation prior 
to the end of the term of the IFT, the City Council of the City 
of Troy has the right to recapture from the Company the total 
amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  Grid4 Communications, understands that the City of Troy 

may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  Grid4 Communications, agrees that it will operate the 

Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
Local laws or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, 
outside storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water 
quality, noise control, other environmental regulations, and all 
of the terms and conditions of the Consent Judgment 
governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 
 City Clerk 



 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2100 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
PATRICK DOHANY 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
DAVID HIEBER 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
GRID4 COMMUNICATION 
900 WILSHIRE STE 310 
TROY MI 48084 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  





CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, October 23, 2006 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from Grid4 Communications, for the establishment of an Industrial 

Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

T2N, R11, E, of Section 29 

2107 Crooks, Troy, Michigan 48084-5534, 

Parcel # 88-20-29-426-046 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, October 23, 2006 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from Grid4 Communications, for the granting of an Industrial 

Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for a period not to exceed 12 years, beginning 

December 31, 2006, for personal property located at: 

 

T2N, R11, E, of Section 29 

2107 Crooks, Troy, Michigan 48084-5534, 

Parcel # 88-20-29-426-046 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
October 23, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager - Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) to Grid4 Communications, 2107 Crooks, Troy MI 48084-
5534  

 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Grid4 Communications is currently located at 900 Wilshire, Ste 310, in Troy.  They are a 

telecommunications, cable, and Internet service provider.  They have recently purchased the 
contracts of other firms, and are ready to expand their operations significantly.  In conjunction with 
Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) grants, they are seeking (and MEGA requires) a 
local match to facilitate their ability to stay in Michigan, and more particularly, Troy. 

 
Our requested local match is for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to be issued 
by the City of Troy.  This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended) and local City 
policy.  As you will recall, this amounts to an approximate 50% reduction in personal property 
taxes that they would pay, over a twelve (12) year period (the total percent may be slightly higher 
or lower than 50%, depending on how much of the 6 mill State Education Tax the State levies). 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $750,000 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $54,844.35, of which $10,762.15 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $27,422.18 in total taxes, of which $5,381.07 would be 
saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the newly amended tax abatement policy of the City Council 

of the City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.  Grid4 Communications currently occupies 4,600 square feet on Wilshire Drive.  
They will be substantially renovating and filling a vacant 32,901 square foot building on Crooks, 
and increasing their employee base dramatically. 

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option of granting the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for any period 

of one (1) to twelve (12) years, or not at all.   
 

This is a well-established company, with many opportunities to expand, and staff recommends 
that the Exemption be granted for the full twelve (12) years. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\Grid4\CouncilPakIFEC PH 



F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and 
Headquarter Companies 

 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) 
encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that the following 
criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in the review 
of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial Development Districts 
(IDD) by the City Council: 
 

1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 
improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to be 
abated; and 

 
2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to be 
abated; and  

 
3) That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to prove 

by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in compliance with 
the basic guidelines established above. 

 
4) The applicant would document that they are Michigan Economic Growth Authority 

(MEGA) eligible, would be filling vacant Troy space, or will retain or expand the 
number of jobs in Troy. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting the 
aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by laws of the 
State of Michigan. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2100 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
PATRICK DOHANY 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
DAVID HIEBER 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
GRID4 COMMUNICATION 
900 WILSHIRE STE 310 
TROY MI 48084 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  





CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, October 23, 2006 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from Grid4 Communications, for the granting of an Industrial 

Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for a period not to exceed 12 years, beginning 

December 31, 2006, for personal property located at: 

 

T2N, R11, E, of Section 29 

2107 Crooks, Troy, Michigan 48084-5534, 

Parcel # 88-20-29-426-046 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
October 17, 2006 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Rezoning Application (File Number: Z 714) – Proposed The Enclave 

Senior Housing, North of Long Lake between Livernois and Crooks, Section 9 – R-1B 
to R-EC 

 
 
Background: 
 
• The applicant proposes rezoning an 8.61-acre parcel from R-1B One Family Residential to R-EC 

Residential Elder Care.  There are also 1.67 acres of rights-of-way that the applicant intends to 
incorporate into the future development.  The applicant submitted an application to vacate 
these rights-of-way. 

 
• The applicant provided a concept plan proposing a senior housing development with 22 homes 

for seniors, 48 senior apartments, 48 assisted living units and 48 nursing care units.   
 
• Access to the parcel is provided by Houghten Street from the north and Stalwart Street from 

the east.  The parcel does not have frontage on a major thoroughfare.  Development on this 
parcel would generate not only vehicular traffic from residents, staff and visitors, but also truck 
traffic to serve the facility.  Without a direct connection to Long Lake Road, development on the 
property would be a significant negative impact on the existing single-family neighborhood.    
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on September 12, 2006, and 
recommended denial of the proposed rezoning.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this application. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning District Map. 
 
• A valid protest petition was submitted which will require five (5) City Council votes to adopt the 

rezoning request. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density Residential and Open 

Space.  The parcel was designated Low Density Residential in 1965.  The Low Density 
Residential classification correlates with the R-1A through R-1E and CR-1 zoning districts.  
The application does not comply with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 

 
• The application does not meet the Location Standards of Section 19.40.00. 
 
• Denial of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal VI (Protect life 

and property). 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council may approve the rezoning, deny the rezoning or postpone the rezoning. 
 
• City Management recommends denial of the proposed rezoning, as recommended by Planning 

Commission. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Letter from applicant. 
3. Letters of opposition. 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-714 The Enclave Sec 9\CC Public Hearing Z 714 10 23 06.doc 
 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



B
E

R
W

Y
C

K

V
IR

G
IL

IA

S I75

H
O

U
G

H
TE

N

STALWART

FABIUS

MCKINLEY

N 
I75 

O
FR

P
N 

I75

NOTTINGHAMCT

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

HAMPSHIRE

D
A

N
IE

LS

W
R

IG
H

T

WINCHEST ER

REZONING  REQUEST
PROPOSED SENIOR HOUSING DEVELOPMENT
FROM R-1B (ONE FAMILY RES.) TO R-EC (RES. ELDER CARE)
E SIDE OF I-75, N OF LONG LAKE
SEC. 9  (Z-714)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³



B
E

R
W

Y
C

K

V
IR

G
IL

IA

S I75

H
O

U
G

H
TE

N

STALWART

FABIUS

MCKINLEY

N 
I75 

O
FR

P
N 

I75

NOTTINGHAMCT

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

HAMPSHIRE

D
A

N
IE

LS

W
R

IG
H

T

WINCHEST ER

(R-1B)

(M-1)

REZONING  REQUEST
PROPOSED SENIOR HOUSING DEVELOPMENT
FROM R-1B (ONE FAMILY RES.) TO R-EC (RES. ELDER CARE)
E SIDE OF I-75, N OF LONG LAKE
SEC. 9  (Z-714)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³



2006 z 714 sec 9 senior living.dgn  1/19/2006 2:33:29 PM

































































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, October 16, 2006, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 P.M. 
 
Pastor A.C. Phipps – Evanswood Church of God gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation on behalf of the City of Troy recognizing 

October 22-28, 2006 as Friends of the Troy Public Library Recognition Week. 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 226) – Articles IV and 
XXIV – Medical Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 

 
Resolution #2006-10-386 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES to amend Articles IV (Definitions) 
and XXIV (O-1 Office Building District) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance to read as written in 
the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 226), City Council Public Hearing 
Draft, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care 
Center, Northwest Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 

 
Pending Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, Section 3, being 39,000 square feet in size, is hereby DENIED for the 
following reasons, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission: 
 
1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. Making a recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan would weaken 

the validity of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend future zoning decisions.   
3. Rezoning this parcel to B-1 would result in the enlargement of an undesirable 

commercial “spot zone” along an area along the Rochester Road corridor that is planned 
for medium density use.   

4. Approval of the rezoning request could open the door for further commercial rezoning 
applications along the Rochester Road corridor. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Planning 
Commission to consider amending the Future Land Use Plan in the Rochester Road corridor 
between Square Lake and South Boulevard before the first City Council meeting scheduled for 
March 2006.   
 
Vote on Substitute Amendment 
 
Resolution #2006-10-387 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the proposed resolution for Rezoning 
Application (File No. Z 180-B) – Binson’s Home Health Care Center, Northwest Corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 by STRIKING it in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTING it with: “RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REMANDS the item to the 
Planning Commission for consideration of O-1 Zoning.” 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2006-10-388 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REMANDS the item to the Planning Commission 
for consideration of O-1 Zoning. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-10-389 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-5 which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-10-389-E-2 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of October 2, 2006 
be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamation  
 
Resolution #2006-10-389-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation be APPROVED: 
 
a) Friends of the Troy Public Library Recognition Week – October 22-28, 2006  
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 
 
E-6 Announcement of Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant  (CDBG) 

2007 Application 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

Resolution #2006-10-389-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That a Public Hearing be SCHEDULED before the Troy City Council on 
November 13, 2006 at 7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit for the purpose 
of hearing public comments on the adoption of the Community Development Block Grant 2007 
application. 
 
E-7 Approval of 2006 Request for Waive Recapture Form for Community Development 
 Block Grant  (CDBG) Funds 
 
Resolution #2006-10-389-E-7 
 
WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current 
program year allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th);   
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing 
communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years to help comply with this 
regulation;  
 
WHEREAS, All unobligated 2004 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2006;  
 
WHEREAS, Troy may protect unobligated 2004 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver; and  
 
WHEREAS, A separate Waiver request form must be submitted for each 2004 line item to the 
Manager of the Oakland County Community & Home Improvement Division no later than 
Friday, November 24, 2006; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy hereby requests to WAIVE recapture of 2004 
CDBG funds as follows: 
 

Account Number  Project Name Amount 
   
731815 Public Facilities and  Improvements; 

Special Assessment  
$120,344.00 

   
E-8 Approval of Co-location on Lowery Street Communications Tower 
 
Resolution #2006-10-389-E-8 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Acknowledgment and 
Lease for the proposed co-location on the Lowery Street communication tower, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

E-9 Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Edenderry Sub No. 2 Detention Basin Parcel  - 
Sidwell #88-20-22-228-004 and -005 

 
Resolution #2006-10-389-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Warranty Deed for the Edenderry Sub. No. 2 Detention Basin parcel from 
Biltmore Properties Corporation, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-228-004 and -005, 
is hereby ACCEPTED; and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said deed 
with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10 Acceptance of an Agreement to Purchase Realty for Public Purposes with Gus and 

Maria Stavropoulos – Industrial Row Parcel No. 34A – Sidwell No. 88-20-32-152-
020, Project No. 06.504.5 and 06.505.5 

 
Resolution #2006-10-389-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase Realty for Public Purposes between Gus and 
Maria Stavropoulos, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-32-152-020 (Sellers), and the 
City of Troy (Purchaser) at the agreed price of $20,660.00 is hereby ACCEPTED; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer, Krispy Kreme Doughnut 
 Shop – Sidwell #88-20-35-400-021, Project No. 03.933.3 
 
Resolution #2006-10-389-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer from Sears, Roebuck and Co, 
owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-35-400-021, is hereby ACCEPTED, and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record said easement 
with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-5 Approval of Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from 
 Richard K. Gauthier, President – Christmas in Action of Oakland County, Inc. 
 
Resolution #2006-10-390 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Christmas in Action 
of Oakland County, Inc., asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in 
the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
appointments b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons 
with Disabilities  

 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2006-10-391 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
O. Carlene Geier Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-2 Bid Waiver – Purchase of In-Car Video System    
  
Resolution #2006-10-392 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by  Beltramini  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

WHEREAS, Digital in-car video systems are a proven method of evidence gathering and liability 
protection; 
 
WHEREAS, Digital in-car video systems will reduce the amount of time needed to manage, 
review and duplicate recordings; and 
 
WHEREAS, International Police Technologies has offered GSA contract pricing contained in 
GSA-FSS Contract GS-07F-9906H for the equipment;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED and a 
contract to purchase digital in-car video systems including hardware, software, installation and 
training from International Police Technologies is hereby APPROVED for an estimated total 
cost of $291,000.00.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-3 Papadelis v. City of Troy    
 
(a) Authorization to File an Application for Leave to Appeal to Michigan Supreme 

Court  
 
Resolution #2006-10-393a 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED to file an 
application for leave to appeal the decision of the Michigan Court of Appeals In Papadelis, et al. 
v Troy, et al., Court of Appeals docket number 268920, to the Michigan Supreme Court.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
(b) Authorization to Request Assistance from the Michigan Municipal League Legal 
 Defense Fund 
 
Resolution #2006-10-393b 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by  Beltramini  
  
WHEREAS, The City of Troy was involved in litigation with Gust Papadelis, Niki Papadelis, 
Telly’s Greenhouse and Garden Center, Inc., and Telly’s Nursery (plaintiffs) involving the use of 
their residentially zoned property in connection with a nursery and greenhouse business;  
  
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Circuit Court granted a declaratory judgment in the case, 
holding that the aforesaid use of the residential property was protected under the Michigan 
Right to Farm Act and precluding the City of Troy from enforcement of its zoning ordinance 
provisions against plaintiffs, which include the provisions prohibiting expansion of a 
nonconforming use, and the provisions establishing a minimum size requirement for residential 
parcels to be used for agricultural purposes;  
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, The Oakland County Circuit Court also ruled plaintiffs were exempt from the 
requirement to obtain a building permit to construct greenhouses and other structures upon 
their residential property under the Agricultural Building Exemption of the State Construction 
Code;  
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Court of Appeals has recently affirmed the foregoing decisions of the 
Oakland County Circuit Court in Papadelis v Troy, unpublished opinion per curiam of the Court 
of Appeals, issued September 19, 2006 (Docket No. 268920), and further ruled the provisions 
of Troy’s zoning ordinance regulating the size, location, lot coverage and minimum setbacks 
with respect to the buildings and structures on plaintiffs property were unenforceable;  
 
WHEREAS,  The Troy City Council has authorized the Troy City Attorney to file an application 
for leave to appeal the Court of Appeals decision to the Michigan Supreme Court;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy believes that the issues involved in the aforesaid case will have 
statewide impact, and are such that the Michigan Municipal League Defense Fund may wish to 
provide supportive aid by filing an amicus curiae brief with the Michigan Supreme Court; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy desires to receive the assistance of the Michigan Municipal 
League Defense Fund; 
  
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED TO REQUEST 
assistance from the Michigan Municipal League Legal Defense Fund in the Papadelis v. Troy 
case, as described above and it is agreed that acceptance of such support shall constitute an 
agreement by the City of Troy to abide by any conditions placed upon the aid offered by the 
Fund.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-4 Second Amendment to Chapter 42 – Flood Plain Management as Required by 

FEMA for Participation in National Flood Insurance Program    
  
Resolution #2006-10-394 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council APPROVES the attached ordinance amendments to Chapter 
42, Flood Plain Management, for the purpose of identifying flood map panel numbers 
26125C0527F, 0529F, 0531F, 0532F, 0533F, 0534F, 0537F, 0541F, 0542F, 0551F, 0552F, 
0553F, 0554F, 0561F, and 0562F in Section 12 of the ordinance; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Council APPROVES the attached resolution to 
Manage Floodplain Development for the National Flood Insurance Program. 
 
Yes: All-7 
F-5 Preliminary Site Plan Review and Amended Consent Order and Judgment (SP 883-

C) – Heartland Health Care, Southeast Corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, 
Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B    

  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

Resolution #2006-10-395 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by  Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the revised Preliminary Site Plan for Heartland Health Care 120 Bed Nursing 
Home, including 16 additional off-street parking spaces, located on the southeast corner of South 
Boulevard and Livernois, Section 3, as indicated on Preliminary Site Plan Sheet SP1, prepared by 
Nowak & Fraus, is hereby APPROVED; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Stipulated Second Amendment to the Consent Order 
and Judgment in the matter of Rodney D. Hyduk, DDS, MSD, Trustee of the Rodney D. Hyduk 
Trust Agreement, dated 2/19/82 as amended and successors in trust, successor to Rodney D. 
Hyduk   v.  City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal corporation and Healthcare and Retirement 
Corporation of America an Ohio Corporation, as Intervening Plaintiff (Oakland County Circuit 
Court Case No. 83-265736-CZ) is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Assistant City Attorney is AUTHORIZED TO SIGN the 
Stipulated Second Amendment of Consent Order and Judgment for entry with the court. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-6 Approval of Election Receiving Board 
 
Resolution #2006-10-396 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by  Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES “Receiving Boards” for all 
future City of Troy administered elections. 
 
Yes: All-7 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Rezoning (File Number: Z 714) – Proposed The Enclave Senior Housing, North of Long 

Lake between Livernois and Crooks, Section 9 – R-1B to R-EC – October 23, 2006   
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Proposed Cancellation of November 27, 2006 Regular City Council Meeting and 
Reconsideration of the 2007 City Council Meeting Schedule as Requested by 
Mayor Schilling 

 
(a) Cancellation of November 27, 2006 City Council Meeting 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, November 27, 2006 
be CANCELLED. 
 
(b) Reconsideration of Resolution #2006-07-316 – 2007 City Council Meetings  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2006-09-316, Moved by Broomfield and Seconded by Fleming, 
as it appears below be RECONSIDERED by City Council: 
 

RESOLVED, That the City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings 
according to the following schedule at 7:30 pm:  
Monday, January 8 & 22 
Monday, February 5, 19 & 26  
Monday, March 5, 19 & 26 
Monday, April 2, 16 & 23 
Monday, May 14 & 21 
Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 
Monday, August 6 & 20 
Monday, September 10, 17 & 24 
Monday, October 1, 15 & 22 
Monday, November 12, 19 & 26 
Monday, December 3, 17 

(two meetings due to end of month holidays) 
  
Liquor Violation Hearing Dates: 
  
Wednesday, February 7 7:30 pm  
Wednesday, February 28 7:30 pm 
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special meetings MAY BE 
SCHEDULED as needed. 
  
Yes: All-7   

 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Cancellation of November 27, 2006 City Council Meeting 
 
Resolution #2006-10-396 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS proposed Resolution (a) to Cancel the 
Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, November 27, 2006 by STRIKING “27” 
and INSERTING “20.” 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Beltramini, Fleming   
No:  Stine, Schilling, Broomfield 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
(a) Cancellation of November 20, 2006 City Council Meeting 
 
Resolution #2006-10-397a 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, November 20, 2006 
be CANCELLED. 
 
(b) Reconsideration of Resolution #2006-07-316 – 2007 City Council Meetings  
 
Resolution #2006-10-397b 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2006-09-316, Moved by Broomfield and Seconded by Fleming, 
as it appears below be RECONSIDERED by City Council: 
 

RESOLVED, That the City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings 
according to the following schedule at 7:30 pm:  
Monday, January 8 & 22 
Monday, February 5, 19 & 26  
Monday, March 5, 19 & 26 
Monday, April 2, 16 & 23 
Monday, May 14 & 21 
Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

Monday, August 6 & 20 
Monday, September 10, 17 & 24 
Monday, October 1, 15 & 22 
Monday, November 12, 19 & 26 
Monday, December 3, 17 

(two meetings due to end of month holidays) 
  
Liquor Violation Hearing Dates: 
  
Wednesday, February 7 7:30 pm  
Wednesday, February 28 7:30 pm 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special meetings MAY BE 
SCHEDULED as needed. 
  
Yes: All-7   

 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Recommended Substitute Amendment to Resolution #2006-09-316 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2006-09-316 by 
SUBSTITUTING the following motion: 
 

RESOLVED, That the City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings according to the 
following schedule at 7:30 pm: 
Monday, January 8 & 22 
Monday, February 5, 19  
Monday, March 5 & 19  
Monday, April 2 & 16 
Monday, May 14 & 21 
Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 
Monday, August 6 & 20 
Monday, September 10 & 17 
Monday, October 1 & 15 
Monday, November 12 & 19 
Monday, December 3 & 17 
  
Liquor Violation Hearing Dates: 
  
Wednesday, February 7 7:30 pm  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

Wednesday, February 28 7:30 pm 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special meetings MAY BE SCHEDULED as needed. 

 
Vote on Proposed Amendment to Recommended Substitute Amendment to Resolution 
#2006-09-316  
 
Resolution #2006-10-398 
Moved by Fleming   
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Resolution for Recommended 
Substitute Amendment to Resolution #2006-09-316 by STRIKING “February 19” and 
INSERTING “February 26.” 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Recommended Substitute Amendment to Resolution #2006-09-31 as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-10-399 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2006-09-316 by 
SUBSTITUTING the following motion:  
 

RESOLVED, That the City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings according to the 
following schedule at 7:30 pm: 
Monday, January 8 & 22 
Monday, February 5, 26 
Monday, March 5 & 19  
Monday, April 2 & 16 
Monday, May 14 & 21 
Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 
Monday, August 6 & 20 
Monday, September 10 & 17 
Monday, October 1 & 15 
Monday, November 12 & 19 
Monday, December 3 & 17 
  
Liquor Violation Hearing Dates: 
  
Wednesday, February 7 7:30 pm  
Wednesday, February 28 7:30 pm 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special meetings MAY BE SCHEDULED as needed. 

 
Yes: All-7   



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

Vote on Resolution #2006-09-31 as Reconsidered and Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2006-09-316 
Moved by Broomfield    
Seconded by Fleming   
 

RESOLVED, That the City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings according to the 
following schedule at 7:30 pm: 
Monday, January 8 & 22 
Monday, February 5, 26 
Monday, March 5 & 19  
Monday, April 2 & 16 
Monday, May 14 & 21 
Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 
Monday, August 6 & 20 
Monday, September 10 & 17 
Monday, October 1 & 15 
Monday, November 12 & 19 
Monday, December 3 & 17 
  
Liquor Violation Hearing Dates: 
  
Wednesday, February 7 7:30 pm  
Wednesday, February 28 7:30 pm 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special meetings MAY BE SCHEDULED as needed. 

 
Yes: All-7 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced  
 
R  

EPORTS: 
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Troy Youth Council/Final – May 24, 2006  
b) Historic Commission/Final – June 28, 2006 
c) Election Commission/Final – July 7, 2006 
d) Traffic Committee/Final – July 19, 2006  
e) Historic District Commission/Final – August 15, 2006 
f) Troy Youth Council/Draft – August 23, 2006  
g) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – September 6, 2006  
h) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – September 6, 2006 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – September 6, 2006  
j) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 7, 2006 
k) Planning Commission/Final – September 12, 2006  
l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – September 26, 2006 
m) Election Commission/Draft – October 2, 2006  
n) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 5, 2006  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of September, 2006  
b) Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for September, 2006  
c) City Attorney’s Office – 2006 Third Quarter Litigation Report  
d) Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML Convention 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Lt. Rossman from Jim Buell of Alliance Mobile Health, 

Recognizing the Life-Saving Actions and Assistance of Officer Denny   
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding D & K Hannawa v. City of 

Troy 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-7  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Licensing Division  

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 16, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:50 P.M. 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING 60 YEARS   

KELLY SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, Kelly Services, a Fortune 500 company and global provider of staffing solutions, 
recently celebrated its 60-year anniversary at the company’s world headquarters located at Big 
Beaver and Crooks Road on October 6, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, Kelly Services was founded in Detroit on October 7, 1946 by William Russell Kelly, who 
is widely credited with pioneering the temporary help industry.  The company operated initially as the 
Russell Kelly Office Service until 1957 when it was renamed Kelly Girl Service; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1966, they became Kelly Services, Inc. to reflect the broad range of staffing services 
provided by the company.  Kelly’s world headquarters have been located in Troy since 1978; and  
 
WHEREAS, Over the years, Kelly Services has grown steadily to meet the needs of its customers 
and has evolved from a United States focused company concentrating primarily on traditional office 
services into a global leader with a breadth of specialty businesses.  Among those specialty 
businesses are information technology, engineering, finance, law, science, education, healthcare and 
home care; and 
 
WHEREAS, Today, Kelly Services is the second largest staffing company in the United States, and 
fifth largest in the world with locations in all 50 states and 30 countries and territories.  Each year, 
Kelly provides employment to more than 700,000 employees and offers a variety of employment 
options from full-time and part-time positions to temporary-to-hire or direct hire;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate Kelly 
Services, Inc. on their 60th Anniversary of providing employment to more than 700,000 people 
across the nation and wish them continued success; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we also commend the Kelly Services organization for their long-
standing tradition of giving back to the community.  Kelly employees across the United States and 
around the world participate in various community charitable efforts including food, clothing and toy 
drives, as well as community service projects at local schools and women’s shelters.   
 
Presented this 23rd day of October 2006. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



 
 
Date  October 10, 2006 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award  – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications 

Seasonal Requirements of Grass Seed and Hydro Seeding Mulch / Fertilizer 
  
Background: 

• On September 27, 2006, ten (10) bids were received and opened to provide 2007 requirements for 
grass seed, hydro seeding mulch and water-soluble fertilizer. 

• 63 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with ten bidders responding. 
• Rasch’s bid price for fescue blend was the same as John Deere Landscapes (JDL) at $.89/lb, but 

delivery turnaround was 5-7 days and subject to availability.  Therefore, the bid for that item could no 
longer be considered. 

• J Mollema & Sons was only low on annual rye grass by $.003 per pound; and therefore minimum 
shipment requirements of $400.00 could not be met. 

• Two companies were disqualified for not meeting specifications on Item #9 – Alpha 1 Bentgrass (for 
golf courses) no substitutions –  Alpha 1 is the preferred variety due to its high rating for weather 
tolerance and overall turf quality, as determined by researchers from the National Turfgrass Evaluation 
Program. 

 

Financial Considerations: 
• Funds are available in: Parks Maintenance account    # 770.7740.010 

Athletic Field Maintenance account   # 759.7740.010. 
  

Legal Considerations:  
• ITB-COT 06-37, Seasonal Requirements of Grass seed and Hydro seeding mulch/ fertilizer was 

competitively bid and opened with ten (10) bidders responding. 
• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their interest in supplying grass seed and hydro 

seeding supplies to the City of Troy.  
• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidders’ submission of proper contract and bid 

documents, including all other specified requirements.  
 

Policy Considerations: 
• The bidding process ensures competition for specific products. (goal #I) 
• Products are required for the general maintenance of existing facilities (goal #IV) 
• Maintaining quality turf on the sports fields reduces the degree of injuries associated with sports 

activities (goal # VI) 
 

1 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



 
 

 
October 10, 2006 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Grass Seed 
 
 
 
Options: 

• City management of the Parks and Recreation Department recommends awarding the 2007 
requirements for grass seed, hydro seeding mulch and water soluble fertilizer to the following low 
bidders meeting specifications for an estimated total cost of $16,126.00 at unit prices and discounts 
contained in the bid tabulation: 

 

o John Deere Landscapes – Armada, MI 
 Perennial Rye – non irrigated  $2392.00 
 Perennial Rye – irrigated  $1840.00 
 Perennial Rye – City lawns  $1840.00 
 Turf-Type Tall Fescue  $2314.00 
 Kentucky Blue Grass   $4183.00 
 Annual Rye Grass   $  156.00  

o Sub-total     $12,725.00 
 

o Tri Turf – Farmington Hills, MI 
 Cellulose Hydro Spray mulch  $  137.50 
 Alpha 1 Bentgrass – golf course $1987.50 

o Sub-total     $  2,125.00    
 

o Washington Elevator Co. Inc. – Washington Twp, MI 
 20-20-20  Water soluble fertilizer $1276.00 

o Sub-total     $   1,276.00 
 

Estimated Total     $16,126.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rwh  S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda ITB-COT 06-37 Seasonal requirements of Grass Seed and Hydroseeding mulch / Fertilizer 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY                ITB-COT 06-37
Opening Date-- 09/27/06 BID TABULATION PG.1 of 5
Date Prepared--  10/9/2006 GRASS SEED

Tri-Turf
VENDOR NAME:

EST PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM # QTY (lbs) DESCRIPTION LBS TOTAL LBS TOTAL

1. 2,600 Perennial Rye (Not irrigated) 0.92$             2,392.00$       1.02$             2,652.00$        
Quoting on: JDL - 20-19-050 Med - Gold

2. 2,000 Perennial Rye (Irrigated) 0.92$            1,840.00$      1.02$             2,040.00$        
Quoting on: JDL - 20-19-050 Med - Gold

3. 2,000 Perennial Rye(City Lawns-Irrigated) 0.92$            1,840.00$      1.02$             2,040.00$        
Quoting on: JDL - 20-19-050 Med - Gold

4. 2,600 Turf-Type Tall Fescue Blend 0.89$            2,314.00$      1.13$             2,938.00$        
Quoting on: JDL - 20-11-250 Triple A

5. 4,700 Kentucky Blue Grass 0.89$            4,183.00$      1.01$             4,747.00$        
Quoting on: 98/85 98/85 VNS

6. 400 Annual Rye Grass 0.39$            156.00$         0.62$             248.00$           
Quoting on: JDL - 20-02-850 VNS

7. 1,000 Cellulose Hydro Spray Mulch 6.65$             201.52$          5.50$             137.50$          
without tack (in bales) Bales: 33# 40 #

8. 2,000 20-20-20 Water Soluble Fertilizer
In 25 # bags /Bag 19.75$           1,580.00$       16.00$           1,280.00$        

Quoting on: NC2202020 Plant Marvel

9. 250 Alpha 1 Bentgrass (Golf Course) DMS 1,625.00$       7.95$             1,987.50$       
NO SUB Quoting on: Kinpin Alpha 1

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR AWARDED ITEMS-- 12,725.00$     2,125.00$        

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: NONE $0.00
DELIVERY TURNAROUND: Days: 2 - 3 Days

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper.  7 AM to 5 PM M - F 8 AM to 4:30 PM    
Phone # 586-752-9534 248-640-4439

VARIETY CERTIFICATION: Signed  Y or N YES YES

TERMS Net 15th 2 % 10  Net 30

WARRANTY NONE Manufacturers

EXCEPTIONS BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Completed   Y or N YES YES

ATTEST:
Jeanetta Simmons BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS
Ronald Hynd
Linda Bockstanz

_________________________
Jeanette Bennett

G: ITB-COT 06-37 Grass Seed Purchasing Director

John Deere Landscapes

1 - 2 Business Days



CITY OF TROY                ITB-COT 06-37
Opening Date-- 09/27/06 BID TABULATION PG.2 of 5
Date Prepared--  10/9/2006 GRASS SEED

Rasch's Landscape
VENDOR NAME: Express LLC

EST PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM # QTY (lbs) DESCRIPTION LBS TOTAL LBS TOTAL

1. 2,600 Perennial Rye (Not irrigated) 1.09$             2,834.00$       0.96$             2,496.00$        
Quoting on: Palmer IV Trifecta

2. 2,000 Perennial Rye (Irrigated) 1.09$             2,180.00$       0.96$             1,920.00$        
Quoting on: Panther GLS Trifecta

3. 2,000 Perennial Rye(City Lawns-Irrigated) 1.09$             2,180.00$       0.96$             1,920.00$        
Quoting on: Palmer IV Trifecta

4. 2,600 Turf-Type Tall Fescue Blend 1.04$             2,704.00$       0.89$             2,314.00$        
Quoting on: Lakeshore 3 - Way Masterpiece + Rembrandt Mix

5. 4,700 Kentucky Blue Grass 0.94$             4,418.00$       1.10$             5,170.00$        
Quoting on: 98/85 VNS Kenblue or Park KBG

6. 400 Annual Rye Grass 0.59$             236.00$          0.89$             356.00$           
Quoting on: VNS Annual Rye

7. 1,000 Cellulose Hydro Spray Mulch 5.50$             166.67$          13.80$           276.00$           
without tack (in bales) Bales: 33 # Applegate Mfg. 50 #

8. 2,000 20-20-20 Water Soluble Fertilizer
In 25 # bags /Bag 15.95$          1,276.00$      26.50$           2,120.00$        

Quoting on: Tracite 20-20-20 Woodace Spray - Gro

9. 250 Alpha 1 Bentgrass (Golf Course) 8.90$             2,225.00$       N/A N/A
NO SUB Quoting on: Alpha 1

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR AWARDED ITEMS-- 1,276.00$      N/A

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: NONE 500 lbs
DELIVERY TURNAROUND: Days: 5 to 7 days

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper. 8 AM to 5 PM   M-F M- F  7:30 AM to 4:30 PM
Phone # 586-781-4822 248-698-0400

VARIETY CERTIFICATION: Signed  Y or N YES YES

TERMS NET 30 NET 30

WARRANTY NONE NONE

EXCEPTIONS N/A Subject to availability

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Completed   Y or N YES YES

PROPOSAL - Seasonal Requirements of Grass Seed and Hydroseeding Mulch / Fertilizer

DMS:
 John Deere Landscapes - Item #9 Kinpin substitute for Alpha 1
 Natural Environmental Reclamation Concepts Inc - Item #9 Alpha 4 substitute for Alpha 1

Washington Elevator Co, Inc.

1 to 2 Days



CITY OF TROY                ITB-COT 06-37
Opening Date-- 09/27/06 BID TABULATION PG.3 of 5
Date Prepared--  10/9/2006 GRASS SEED

J. Mollema & Sons
VENDOR NAME:

EST PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM # QTY (lbs) DESCRIPTION LBS TOTAL LBS TOTAL

1. 2,600 Perennial Rye (Not irrigated) 1.04$             2,704.00$         1.06$             2,756.00$          
Quoting on: VNS Lesco Double Eagle 011663

2. 2,000 Perennial Rye (Irrigated) 1.16$             2,320.00$         1.06$             2,120.00$          
Quoting on: 1/3 Edge,1/3 Fiesta III, 1/3 Jiffie Lesco Double Eagle 011663

3. 2,000 Perennial Rye(City Lawns-Irrigated) 1.16$             2,320.00$         1.06$             2,120.00$          
Quoting on: 1/3 Edge,1/3 Fiesta III, 1/3 Jiffie Lesco Double Eagle 011663

4. 2,600 Turf-Type Tall Fescue Blend 1.28$             3,328.00$         1.06$             2,756.00$          
Quoting on: 1/3 Guardian, 1/3 Chirton II, 1/3 Mic 18 Lesco Transition  007330

5. 4,700 Kentucky Blue Grass 1.12$             5,264.00$         1.68$             7,896.00$          
Quoting on: 98/85 KBG Lesco Quality Blue 001715

6. 400 Annual Rye Grass 0.387$           154.80$           0.42$             168.00$             
Quoting on: VNS Annual  001416

7. 1,000 Cellulose Hydro Spray Mulch 6.75$             168.75$           9.95$             199.00$             
without tack (in bales) Bales: 40# 50 # Bags Mulch, Cellulose, Hydraulic

8. 2,000 20-20-20 Water Soluble Fertilizer
In 25 # bags /Bag 18.75$           1,500.00$         21.95$           1,756.00$          

Quoting on: Nutriculture 20-20-20 Macron 20-20-20  016474

9. 250 Alpha 1 Bentgrass (Golf Course) N/A N/A No Bid No bid
NO SUB Quoting on:

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR AWARDED ITEMS-- N/A N/A

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: $400.00 0
DELIVERY TURNAROUND: Days: On Wednesday Route

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper. 8 AM to 5 PM 7:30 AM to 5:00 PM
Phone # 616 - 541-3000 800-321-5325   ext 6550

VARIETY CERTIFICATION: Signed  Y or N Yes Yes

TERMS Net 30 Net 30

WARRANTY None Blank

EXCEPTIONS Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Completed   Y or N Yes Yes

G: ITB-COT 06-37 Grass Seed

Lesco, Inc.

7 to 10 days



CITY OF TROY                ITB-COT 06-37
Opening Date-- 09/27/06 BID TABULATION PG.4 of 5
Date Prepared--  10/9/2006 GRASS SEED

B & W Landscape Exclusive Property
VENDOR NAME: Supply Inc Management, LLC

EST PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM # QTY (lbs) DESCRIPTION LBS TOTAL LBS TOTAL

1. 2,600 Perennial Rye (Not irrigated) 1.47$             3,822.00$        1.291$           3,358.99$        
Quoting on: Morning Star JDL Select

2. 2,000 Perennial Rye (Irrigated) 1.47$             2,940.00$        1.291$           2,582.00$        
Quoting on: Shining Star 33% Palmer,33% Pennant,33%Wizard

3. 2,000 Perennial Rye(City Lawns-Irrigated) 1.47$             2,940.00$        1.291$           2,582.00$        
Quoting on: Shining Star 33% Palmer,33% Pennant,33%Wizard

4. 2,600 Turf-Type Tall Fescue Blend 1.67$             4,342.00$        1.25$             3,239.98$        
Quoting on: Emerald Park  - Tri Fesque 45%Shenadoa,35%Falcon,20%Scorpion

5. 4,700 Kentucky Blue Grass 1.29$             6,063.00$        1.65$             7,749.50$        
Quoting on: 85/80 Washington

6. 400 Annual Rye Grass 0.79$             316.00$           0.55$             219.95$           
Quoting on: Gulf/Jacks Select Blend

7. 1,000 Cellulose Hydro Spray Mulch 13.24$           264.80$           7.26$             223.38$           
without tack (in bales) Bales: 50 # 32.5 avg.

8. 2,000 20-20-20 Water Soluble Fertilizer
In 25 # bags /Bag 26.85$           2,148.00$        17.94$           1,435.39$        

Quoting on: Peters 20-20-20 Water Soluable

9. 250 Alpha 1 Bentgrass (Golf Course)          Unable to Quote 9.89$             2,472.50$       
NO SUB Quoting on: Alpha 1 Bentgrass

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR AWARDED ITEMS-- N/A N/A

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: 8,000 lbs $250.00
DELIVERY TURNAROUND: Days: 1 week 3 to 5 Business days

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper. 8 AM to 6 PM M-F  8AM to 4 PM Sat 7 AM to 5 PM
Phone # 586-463-0545 810-223-5554

VARIETY CERTIFICATION: Signed  Y or N Yes Yes

TERMS Net 30 2% 10, 30 days net

WARRANTY Blank

EXCEPTIONS Blank Hardcopy purchase order requested
prior to delivery & Bid as one Lot Pricing

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Completed   Y or N Yes Yes

G: ITB-COT 06-37 Grass Seed

As per Manufacturer



CITY OF TROY                ITB-COT 06-37
Opening Date-- 09/27/06 BID TABULATION PG.5 of 5
Date Prepared--  10/9/2006 GRASS SEED

VENDOR NAME:

EST PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM # QTY (lbs) DESCRIPTION LBS TOTAL LBS TOTAL

1. 2,600 Perennial Rye (Not irrigated) 1.40$             3,640.00$      1.24$              3,224.00$        
Quoting on: Buccaneer II Golden Rye Blend

2. 2,000 Perennial Rye (Irrigated) 1.45$             2,900.00$      1.24$              2,480.00$        
Quoting on: Champion Blend Golden Rye Blend

3. 2,000 Perennial Rye(City Lawns-Irrigated) 1.45$             2,900.00$      1.24$              2,480.00$        
Quoting on: Champion Blend Golden Rye Blend

4. 2,600 Turf-Type Tall Fescue Blend 1.40$             3,640.00$      1.26$              3,276.00$        
Quoting on: Defiance Blend Tall Green

5. 4,700 Kentucky Blue Grass 1.32$             6,204.00$      1.97$              9,259.00$        
Quoting on: Park Top Blue

6. 400 Annual Rye Grass 0.60$             240.00$         0.66$              264.00$           
Quoting on: Gulf VNS

7. 1,000 Cellulose Hydro Spray Mulch 7.32$             183.00$         8.48$              169.60$           
without tack (in bales) Bales: 40# 50 #

8. 2,000 20-20-20 Water Soluble Fertilizer
In 25 # bags /Bag 52.50$           4,200.00$      19.24$            1,539.20$        

Quoting on: As specified Turfgrass 20-20-20

9. 250 Alpha 1 Bentgrass (Golf Course) DMS 442.50$         8.18$              2,045.00$        
NO SUB Quoting on: Alpha 4 Bentgrass Alpha

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR AWARDED ITEMS-- N/A N/A

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: 400 lbs 1 Bag
DELIVERY TURNAROUND: Days:

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper. 8 AM to 5 PM 8 AM to 5 PM
Phone # 517-563-2898 248-866-6081

VARIETY CERTIFICATION: Signed  Y or N Yes Yes

TERMS 30 Days Net 30 days

WARRANTY Yes None

EXCEPTIONS One Lot Pricing with up to…. Blank
6 Separte shipments

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Completed   Y or N Yes Yes

G: ITB-COT 06-37 Grass Seed

Natural Environmental
Reclamation Concepts, Inc.

5 Days

Turfgrass Inc.

1 to 3 days



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
October 11, 2006 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
    Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 

William S. Nelson, Fire Chief   
      
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 7:  Proprietary Service Contract 

CLEMIS Fire Records Management System  
 

Background: 
• The fire department as been using the CLEMIS Fire Records Management System 

(FRMS) since 2000.  CC Resolution # 2002-08-459-E7 
• The Oakland County Board of Commissioners has authorized Oakland County to fund 

75% of the FRMS costs. 
• The FRMS permits fire departments within Oakland County to share data as required. 
• The fire department share of the cost was fixed at approximately $5,300 per year for the 

first five years of the program. 
• The cost for each participating agency has been increased 10% for 2007, 3% for 2008, 

and 3% for 2009. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
• Funds are budgeted in the fire department operating budget for this program. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
• The fire department is required by state law to report fire incident activity to the State Fire 

Marshal. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
• This regional program is consistent with City Council goals I – Minimize cost and increase 

efficiency of City government; and goal VI – protect life and property.  
 
Options: 
• City management recommends approval of a five-year interlocal agreement with Oakland 

County for participation in the Oakland County Fire Records Management System at an 
estimated cost of $18,025.00 to expire December 31, 2009.  

 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



 
 

Oakland County 
Fire Records Management System 

 
2006 - 2009 Fee Structure 

 
 
 

 2006 2007 2008 2009 
Annual 

 Department  
Fees 

Annual  
Department  

Fees 

Annual 
 Department 

 Fees 

Annual 
 Department 

 Fees 
$ 3,500.00 $ 3,850.00 $ 3,966.00 $ 4,085.00 

Annual  
Additional  

Station Fee 

Annual 
 Additional  
Station Fee 

Annual  
Additional  

Station Fee 

Annual  
Additional  

Station Fee 
$ 300.00 $ 330.00 $ 340.00 $ 350.00 

 
 
 
 
Approved 1/11/2006 
Oakland County Fire Governance Committee 
 
Note: This is the first fee increase since the program’s inception. 
 



 
 
Date  October 10, 2006 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder – One (1) 60,000 GVW Tandem 

Combination Sewer & Catch Basin Cleaning Machine, Less Trade-In  
  
Background: 

• On August 29, 2006, bids were received for one 60,000 GVW tandem axle combination sewer and 
catch basin cleaning machine, less trade-in.  

• Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc. of Northville, MI was the low total bidder. 
• 34 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with two bidders responding. 
• In addition, one vendor walked-in to pick up the documents, and one bidder submitted a no bid, as the 

engine size was too small for Volvo trucks. 
 
Financial Considerations: 

• Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account # 565.7981. 
  

Legal Considerations:  
• ITB-COT 06-43 for one 60,000 GVW tandem axle combination sewer and catch basin cleaning 

machine, less trade-in was competitively bid and opened with two bidders responding. 
• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying a tandem axle 

combination sewer and catch basin cleaning machine, less trade-in for the City of Troy.  
• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid 

documents, including all other specified requirements.  
 

Policy Considerations: 
• The combination sewer jet & catch basin cleaner is used by City crews on a daily basis to assure 

proper and proactive sewer maintenance. (Goal IV & VI) 
• The purchase of this machine would assure the health and welfare of citizens and businesses and also 

reduce the liability for the City. (Goal VI) 
 

Options: 
• City management of the Public Works Fleet division recommends awarding one 60,000 GVW tandem 

axle combination sewer and catch basin cleaning machine to the low total bidder, Jack Doheny 
Supplies, Inc. of Northville, MI for $299,500.00 less trade-in of $115,000.00 for an estimated net total 
cost of $184,500.00.  

 
SPL\  S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 10.23.06 – SR1 – Combination Sewer & Catch Basin Machine Letter 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-43
Opening Date -- 8-29-06 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 9/18/06 TANDEM SEWER & CATCH BASIN CLEANING MACHINE

VENDOR NAME: * Jack Doheny Great Lakes 
Supplies Service & Supplies

PROPOSAL-- FURNISH ONE(1) 60,000 GVW Tandem Combination Sewer & Catch Basin Cleaning Machine
Less Optional Trade-In - Model 2006/2007 -

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 299,500.00$           289,136.77$          

QUOTING ON MODEL: 2115-J6F/LT7501 Stering LT7500 6x4
MANUFACTURED BY: Vactor/Stering Vac - Con

LESS:  Optional Trade-In
One 2000 Sterling LT-7501 Truck chassis
60,000 GVW Diesel  - Model 2115-J6F

($115,000.00) ($86,136.77)

NET TOTAL 184,500.00$           203,000.00$         

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Yes Yes
Over 150 rental units (If one is available)

LOANER: Can or Cannot CAN CAN

SERVICE FACILITY: Location Northville, MI Petersburg, MI
Inventory Parts $5,000,000 $250,000
Hours of Oper. 6am to 6pm M-F 8am to 5pm 

8-12 Sat
Special Orders 1 Day 2 to 3 Days
Notification time 1 Hour 1 Hour
Warranty Work Yes - Full Service Yes - at Facility

TERMS: Net 30 30 Days

WARRANTY:

DELIVERY DATE: Immediate 180 Days

EXCEPTIONS: None on Vactor Modules Attached to Bid

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Yes Yes

NO BIDS:
  VIP Truck Centers * DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER

ATTEST:
Charlene McComb
Sam Lamerato Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G:\ITB-COT 06-43 GVW Tandem Catch Basin Machine

AS SPECIFIED



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
October 17, 2006 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services & Economic Development 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director   
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bid – Vehicle Wash Services  
 
 
Background: 
 The City has contracted the use of local car wash facilities to wash the City owned fleet of automobiles and 

light trucks. 
 Both exterior and exterior/interior car washes have been utilized to wash approximately 4,000 vehicles per 

year.  
 61 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with no responsive bids received.  The City received two 

bids not meeting specifications and one late bid.  
 One of the disqualified bidders, Your Car Wash, applies reclaimed water in three stages of the vehicle 

wash cycle and not fresh water as specified.  A sample of the filtered water was taken and found to be 
cloudy with particles of dirt suspended in the water. 

 
 When City staff followed up with the owner/operator to determine if he could meet the specifications, the 

owner/operator said he could turn off all reclaimed water (approximately 60 gallons). Several vehicles were 
run through the wash using the reduced quantity of water.  The results were unsatisfactory (road film, 
insect residue and dirt remained on the vehicles). When car washes are designed, they are engineered 
with a set number of gallons for proper vehicle wash/rinse, assuring a clean vehicle.  Removing 
approximately 60 gallons of water from a vehicle wash and not replacing it with fresh water, results in an 
inadequate wash and rinse cycle.  

 
 The engineered gallons of fresh water are required to clean the vehicle and help protect the vehicle finish 

and maintain residual value.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 On September 13, 2006, competitive bids were sought and opened for ITB-COT 06-46, two-year 

requirements of vehicle wash services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years.   
 The rejection of bids is due to: 

o Your Car Wash does not meet specifications, nor did they take exception to the specification, 
which states, “fresh water must be used at all times”.    

o Town Auto Center’s bid was non-responsive, as the bid surety check specified did not 
accompany the bid. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



Page 2 of 2 

October 17, 2006 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Rejection of Bid – Vehicle Wash Services 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying services for the 

City of Troy. (Goal 1) 
 
Options: 
 City management recommends rejecting all bids and re-bidding the contract, which provides for two (2) 

year requirements of vehicle wash services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years, as no one 
met specifications. 

 
 
 
 
 
SL\sl   S:Murphy’s Review/Agenda 10.16.06 SR11: Vehicle Wash Services RejectLetter       



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-46
Opening Date -- 9/13/06 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 10/2/06 VEHICLE WASH SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

CHECK #
AMOUNT

SERVICE COST/
ITEM EST. QTY          DESCRIPTION LEVEL UNIT

1. 1,950 Wash Outside of Vehicle A
(passenger car & mid-size SUV)

2. 400 Complete Car Wash B
  (clean inside/out)

3. 1,600 Pickup Trucks and Vans A
  (outside wash)

4. 50 Pickup Trucks and Vans B
  (clean inside/out)

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS:

CAR WASH LOCATIONS:

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper.
Phone #

INSURANCE Can meet
Cannot meet

SITE VISIT:     Contact Name
    Phone #
    Facility Address

TERMS:

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N

PROPOSAL - Two (2) Year Requirements for City Vehicle Wash Services with
an Option to renew for an Additional Two (2) Years

DMS:   Town Auto Center - No Check
Your Car Wash - ($12,425.00)  Reason:  Bidder does not use fresh water as specified.

ATTEST:
Kathy Denby _____________________________
Jenetta L. Simmons Jeanette Bennett
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 06-46 Vehicle Wash Services

-- RECOMMEND REJECTION --



 
Date  October 16, 2006 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidders  – Concrete 

Pavement Repair  
Background: 

• On October 10, 2006, bids were received for Concrete Pavement Repair under three 
proposals: A), A-1)- Local Roads, B)- Major Roads, and C)- Industrial Roads with an option to 
renew for one additional year.  

• Hard Rock Concrete Inc., Six-S, Inc., and Major Cement Company were the three separate 
low bidders for each proposal category.  

• 97 vendors were notified via the MITN system with one additional vendor walk-in. 
 
Financial Considerations:  

• Funds for this project are available in the 2006/07 Capital Accounts for Public Works 
Construction. 

• Proposal A. Acc.# 401499.7989.500 Local Roads, Proposal A-1 Acc.# 401499.7989.051015 
Local Roads -Section 11. 

• Proposal B. Acc.# 401479.7989.500 Major Roads, 
• Proposal C. Acc.# 401479.7989.300 Industrial Roads. 

 
Legal Considerations:  

• ITB-COT 06-42, Concrete Pavement Repair was competitively bid and opened with ten 
bidders responding. 

• The awards are contingent upon the recommended bidders submission of proper contracts 
and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  

 
Policy Considerations:  

• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the concrete 
pavement repair program for the City of Troy. (Goal1). 

 
• Moving this work forward would improve public safety and also reduce the liability for the City. 

(Goal VI) 
 

 
1 of 2 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04e



 
 
October 16, 2006 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Concrete Pavement Repair 
 
 
 
Options: 

• City management of the Public Works department recommends contract awards to three 
separate low bidders, Hard Rock Concrete Inc. of Westland, for proposal A, A-1 – Local 
Roads, Six-S. Inc. of Waterford for proposal B – Major Roads, and Major Cement Company of 
Detroit, MI, proposal C – Industrial Roads for an estimated total cost of $842,350.00, 
$872,925.00 and $864,425.00 respectively at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation not to 
exceed budgetary limitations.  

 
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mbf  S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 10.23.06 SR1 Concrete Pavement Repair 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 1 
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Hardrock Six-S Major Lacaria
 Concrete Inc Cememt Co Concrete

Ck Number 514507186 710545098-6 710540842-5 473333442
Ck Amount 10,000.00$      10,000.00$      10,000.00$       10,000.00$      

Proposal A:  Abbington, Ashley, Mayberry Littler & Scattered Location in Section #11
Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 1000 S.Y. $33.00 $41.00 $36.00 $35.00
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 16,000 S.Y. $31.00 $39.00 $34.00 $34.50
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $37.08 $30.00 $30.00

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $37.08 $28.00 $28.00

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $375.00 $229.96 $250.00 $300.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $375.00 $227.85 $100.00 $300.00
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $375.00 $229.95 $275.00 $300.00
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $375.00 $227.85 $100.00 $300.00
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 1000 CY $17.00 $15.00 $22.00 $20.00

10 Installation of 6” edge drain
(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $12.00 $9.27 $10.00 $10.00

11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $22.00 $15.00 $20.00 $20.00
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $350.00 $286.78 $300.00 $400.00

13 Traffic Maintenance Included
Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A $557,325.00 $688,750.06 $610,650.00 $617,550.00

Proposal A-1: Various Sections - Bradbury, Blair, Gabriel Court, Lyster Lane, Victoria Court & Other Scattered Locations 
Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 800 S.Y. $34.00 $45.75 $42.00 $39.00

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 7,000 S.Y. $34.00 $44.20 $40.00 $37.70

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $38.09 $29.00 $33.00

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $38.09 $28.00 $31.00

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $375.00 $236.24 $250.00 $400.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $375.00 $234.07 $100.00 $400.00
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $375.00 $236.22 $275.00 $400.00
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $375.00 $234.07 $100.00 $400.00
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 500 C.Y. $17.00 $15.00 $21.00 $21.00
10 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $12.00 $8.00 $10.00 $10.00
11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $22.00 $15.00 $20.00 $20.00
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $350.00 $250.00 $300.00 $400.00
13 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A-1 $285,025.00 $361,849.46 $332,725.00 $317,000.00
ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR A & A-1: $842,350.00 $1,050,599.52 $943,375.00 $934,550.00



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 2 
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Hardrock Six-S Major Lacaria
 Concrete Inc Cement Co Concrete
Proposal B  – 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Rochester Road, Coolidge Hwy., Elliott & Scattered Locations
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete Pavement

Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-reinforced 18,500 S.Y. No Bid 45.75$                 47.00$              50.75$                 
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. No Bid 44.00$                 42.00$              50.00$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. No Bid 42.00$                35.00$              49.00$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced

(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. No Bid 32.00$                 29.00$              48.00$                 
5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk

4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. No Bid 27.00$                 27.00$              40.00$                 
6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each No Bid 223.31$               250.00$            500.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. No Bid 221.27$               100.00$            500.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each No Bid 223.30$               275.00$            500.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. No Bid 221.27$               100.00$            500.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA Gravel 900 C.Y. No Bid 15.00$                 21.00$              22.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. No Bid 8.00$                   7.00$                10.00$                 
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. No Bid 15.00$                 20.00$              22.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea No Bid 278.49$               250.00$            400.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal B No Bid 872,924.79$       900,625.00$        978,050.00$        

Proposal C: 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Industrial - Kirts, Executive, Minnesota, Northfield Parkway, Robbins & Allen
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-rein 18,500 S.Y. 46.00$                 45.75$                 45.00$              50.75$                 
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 45.00$                 44.00$                 42.00$              50.00$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 44.00$                 42.00$                 35.00$              49.00$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 36.00$                 32.00$                 29.00$              48.00$                 

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 36.00$                 27.00$                 27.00$              40.00$                 

6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 375.00$               223.31$               250.00$            500.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. 375.00$               221.27$               100.00$            500.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 375.00$               223.30$               275.00$            500.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. 375.00$               221.27$               100.00$            500.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 900 C.Y. 17.00$                 15.00$                 22.00$              22.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 12.00$                 8.00$                   7.00$                10.00$                 
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 22.00$                 15.00$                 19.00$              22.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 350.00$               278.49$               250.00$            400.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal C $883,350.00 $872,924.79 $864,425.00 $978,050.00



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 3
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Hardrock Six-S Major Lacaria
 Concrete Inc Cement Co Concrete

INSURANCE:                      Can Meet XX XX XX XX
                                         Cannot Meet

PROPOSED PAYMENT SCHEDULE:  Bi-Weekly Bi-weekly every two weeks not at this time

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 7 AM to 8 PM 8 - 5pm 313-532-3212 7 - 5pm
Phone 734-564-0925 248-249-8705 248-388-1168 313-218-6834

AWARD                       100% of Contract XX XX XX
                                         Partial Contract: Proposal A X

Proposal B
Proposal C X

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:

TERMS: As in Contract Net 15 days 14 days Blank
Maintenance

WARRANTY: As per Contract Bond Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank None

ACKNOWLEGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

Legal Status of Bidder Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes
Non-Collusion Affidavit Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDERS
Aileen Bittner
Marina Basta Farouk
Emily Frontera
Linda Bockstanz

PROPOSAL - City of Troy Concrete Pavement Repair Program for Local,
Major, and Industrial Roads with an Option to Renew for an
Additional One-Year Period

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 06-42 Concrete Pavement Repair

BY JUNE 30, 2007



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 4
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Century DiLisio Florence Giorgi
 Cement Co Contracting Cememt Co Concrete LLC

Ck Number 736270808 1080001386 473350702 46022
Ck Amount 10,000.00$        10,000.00$      10,000.00$          10,000.00$        

Proposal A:  Abbington, Ashley, Mayberry Littler & Scattered Location in Section #11
Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 1000 S.Y. $44.00 $40.60 $46.75 $48.20
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 16,000 S.Y. $40.00 $39.60 $43.90 $44.89
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $35.00 $38.60 $40.00 $47.25

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $34.00 $35.00 $33.75 $37.80

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $500.00 $150.00 $150.00 $315.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $300.00 $200.00 $170.00 $157.50
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $400.00 $150.00 $150.00 $262.50
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $300.00 $200.00 $170.00 $157.50
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 1000 CY $1.00 $30.00 $24.00 $26.25

10 Installation of 6” edge drain
(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $12.00 $6.00 $9.00 $12.60

11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $30.00 $22.00 $23.00 $26.25
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $350.00 $400.00 $475.00 $367.50

13 Traffic Maintenance Included
Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A $696,925.00 $714,090.00 $784,073.75 $803,846.25

Proposal A-1: Various Sections - Bradbury, Blair, Gabriel Court, Lyster Lane, Victoria Court & Other Scattered Locations 
Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 800 S.Y. $44.00 $40.60 $46.75 $48.20

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 7,000 S.Y. $40.00 $39.60 $43.90 $44.89

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $35.00 $38.60 $40.00 $47.25

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $34.00 $35.00 $33.75 $37.80

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $500.00 $150.00 $150.00 $315.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $300.00 $200.00 $170.00 $157.50
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $400.00 $150.00 $150.00 $262.50
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $300.00 $200.00 $170.00 $157.50
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 500 C.Y. $1.00 $30.00 $24.00 $26.25
10 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $12.00 $6.00 $9.00 $12.60
11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $30.00 $22.00 $23.00 $26.25
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $350.00 $400.00 $475.00 $367.50
13 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A-1 $327,625.00 $334,570.00 $367,623.75 $377,071.25
ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR A & A-1: $1,024,550.00 $1,048,660.00 $1,151,697.50 $1,180,917.50

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42



Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 5
Date Prepared --  10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Century DiLisio Florence Giorgi
 Cement Co Contracting Cement Co Concrete LLC
Proposal B  – 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Rochester Road, Coolidge Hwy., Elliott & Scattered Locations
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete Pavement

Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-reinforced 18,500 S.Y. 55.00$                48.90$            53.00$                 NO BID
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 50.00$                43.50$            50.00$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 45.00$               39.60$            47.00$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced

(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 35.00$                38.60$            40.00$                 
5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk

4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 34.00$                35.00$            33.75$                 
6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 500.00$              150.00$           150.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. 300.00$              200.00$           170.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 400.00$              150.00$           150.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. 300.00$              200.00$           170.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA Gravel 900 C.Y. 1.00$                  30.00$            16.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 12.00$                6.00$              9.00$                   
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 30.00$                22.00$            23.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 350.00$              400.00$           475.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal B 1,036,200.00$   947,617.50$    1,012,998.75$    

Proposal C: 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Industrial - Kirts, Executive, Minnesota, Northfield Parkway, Robbins & Allen
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-rein 18,500 S.Y. 52.00$                48.90$            53.00$                 NO BID
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 50.00$                43.50$            50.00$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 45.00$                39.60$            47.00$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 35.00$                38.60$            40.00$                 

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 34.00$                35.00$            33.75$                 

6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 500.00$              150.00$           150.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. 300.00$              200.00$           170.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 400.00$              150.00$           150.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. 300.00$              200.00$           170.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 900 C.Y. 1.00$                  30.00$            16.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 12.00$                6.00$              9.00$                   
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 30.00$                22.00$            23.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 350.00$              400.00$           475.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal C $980,700.00 $947,617.50 $1,012,998.75



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 6
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Century DiLisio Florence Giorgi
 Cement Co Contracting Cement Co Concrete LLC

INSURANCE:                      Can Meet XX XX XX XX
                                         Cannot Meet

PROPOSED PAYMENT SCHEDULE: monthly  Bi-Weekly Bi-Weekly Every 30 Days

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 6am-6pm 9 am to 5 pm 7am - 7pm 7am-5pm
Phone 734-284-8770 586-783-4044 586.781.8691 313.300.3599

AWARD                       100% of Contract XX XX XX
                                         Partial Contract: Proposal A X X

Proposal B X
Proposal C X

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:

TERMS: 90 Days TBD Blank every 30 days
Two-Year

WARRANTY: Blank Maintenance Blank One Year

EXCEPTIONS: Blank N/A Based upon N/A
award of all

sections

ACKNOWLEGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

Legal Status of Bidder Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes
Non-Collusion Affidavit Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

G: ITB-COT 06-42 Concrete Pavement Repair

BY JUNE 30, 2007



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 7
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Koala-T Hartwell
 Construction Inc Cement Co

Ck Number 314139167 473351653
Ck Amount 10,000.00$         10,000.00$           

Proposal A:  Abbington, Ashley, Mayberry Littler & Scattered Location in Section #11
Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 1000 S.Y. $48.50 $51.30
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 16,000 S.Y. $46.70 $49.60
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $40.00 $47.90

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $45.00

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $250.00 $175.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $500.00 $150.00
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $250.00 $175.00
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $500.00 $150.00
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 1000 CY $35.00 $25.00

10 Installation of 6” edge drain
(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $13.00 $8.00

11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $30.00 $25.00
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $450.00 $950.00

13 Traffic Maintenance Included
Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A $844,150.00 $886,147.50

Proposal A-1: Various Sections - Bradbury, Blair, Gabriel Court, Lyster Lane, Victoria Court & Other Scattered Locations 
Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 800 S.Y. $48.50 $51.30

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 7,000 S.Y. $48.00 $49.60

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $40.00 $47.90

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $45.00

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $250.00 $175.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $500.00 $150.00
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $250.00 $175.00
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $500.00 $150.00
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 500 C.Y. $35.00 $25.00
10 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $13.00 $8.00
11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $30.00 $25.00
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $450.00 $950.00
13 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A-1 $405,750.00 $416,987.50
ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR A & A-1: $1,249,900.00 $1,303,135.00

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42



Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 8
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Koala-T Hartwell
 Construction Inc Cement Co
Proposal B  – 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Rochester Road, Coolidge Hwy., Elliott & Scattered Locations
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete Pavement

Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-reinforced 18,500 S.Y. NO BID 53.00$                 
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 51.30$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 49.60$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced

(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 47.90$                 
5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk

4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 45.00$                 
6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 175.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. 150.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 175.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. 150.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA Gravel 900 C.Y. 25.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 8.00$                   
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 30.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 950.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal B 1,031,770.00$      

Proposal C: 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Industrial - Kirts, Executive, Minnesota, Northfield Parkway, Robbins & Allen
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-rein 18,500 S.Y. NO BID 53.00$                 
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 51.30$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 49.60$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 47.90$                 

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 45.00$                 

6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 175.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. 150.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 175.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. 150.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 900 C.Y. 25.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 8.00$                   
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 30.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 950.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal C $1,031,770.00



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 9
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Koala-T Hartwell
 Construction Inc Cement Co

INSURANCE:                      Can Meet XX XX
                                         Cannot Meet

PROPOSED PAYMENT SCHEDULE: every two weeks As required by City

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 7am - 7pm 8am - 4:30pm
Phone 810.560.3213 248.789.4148

AWARD                       100% of Contract XX
                                         Partial Contract: Proposal A X

Proposal B
Proposal C

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:

TERMS: 14 days Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: One Year One Year

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Blank

ACKNOWLEGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes

Legal Status of Bidder Y or N Yes Yes
Non-Collusion Affidavit Y or N Yes Yes

G: ITB-COT 06-42 Concrete Pavement Repair

BY JUNE 30, 2007



campbellld
Text Box
E-04f











campbellld
Text Box
E-05

























campbellld
Text Box
E-06









































 

 
 
September 29, 2006 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
Carol Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 

 
SUBJECT:  Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Municipal credits are state-authorized funds that are given directly to the Suburban Mobility 

Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART) to be divided among every city, township and 
village in Oakland, Wayne and Macomb Counties on a per capita basis.  Community credits are a 
direct result of the SMART millage that provides opt-in communities with additional funds.  

 
 Troy’s municipal and community credit dollars have been used to support the community based 

Troy Medi-Go Plus service.  Medi-Go Plus provided over 11,000 rides to 603 unique senior and 
disabled riders in 2005.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There is neither expense nor financial implications to the City for this program.  

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There is no change to format and content of previous agreements with Medi-Go. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 These funds must be used for local public transportation.  Medi-Go provides door-to-door service 

and wheelchair accessible vehicles.  For these reasons, Medi-Go is well suited for our frail elderly 
and disabled population.  (Goal #1)  

 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07



Options: 
 
 The City can transfer Municipal Credit funds in the amount of $76,084 and Community Credit 

funds in the amount of $99,087 to Troy Medi-Go Plus for the operation of transportation service 
for senior citizens and persons with disabilities. 

 
 
Where legal review is necessary: 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:      _______ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 







 

 
 
October 18, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Annual Appreciation Banquets 
 
 
Background: 
 As in previous years, the City Council appoints a master of ceremonies for the annual Boards 

& Committees Appreciation Banquet (February 10, 2007) and the annual Fire Fighters 
Appreciation Banquet (May 19, 2007). 
The Community Affairs Department has already begun the planning process for the annual 
banquets to ensure a first class event.  Please have City Council appoint a councilperson that 
will act as the official master of ceremonies that evening and work with the Community Affairs 
Department.  Responsibilities include selecting a minister or priest to give the invocation, 
greeting all guests and distributing party favors that evening, and serving as master of 
ceremonies for the program. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Troy City Council appoint a council member to act as the official master of 

ceremonies for the Board and Committee Appreciation banquet and one for the Fire Fighters 
Appreciation Banquet. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



 
 
 
 
October 17, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: 

ZOTA 227) – Articles XXII, XXIII, XXIV and XXVIII – Ambulance Facilities in the B-3, H-S, 
O-1 and M-1 Districts 

 
 
Background: 
 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the November 13, 2006 City Council meeting. 
 
• The draft zoning ordinance text amendment would permit ambulance facilities as a conditional 

use in the M-1 Light Industrial District.  Additionally, ambulance facilities would no longer be 
permitted in the B-3 General Commercial District, H-S Highway Service District and O-1 Office 
Building District.   
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on October 10, 2006, and 
recommended approval of the proposed text amendment.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• The proposed text amendment would expand the range of uses permitted within the M-1 Light 

Industrial District. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



Policy Considerations: 
 
• A text amendment to the B-3, H-S, O-1 and M-1 provisions would apply to all similarly zoned 

property in the City.  City Council should determine whether it is appropriate to add ambulance 
facilities in the M-1 Light Industrial zoning district and delete ambulance facilities in the B-3, H-S 
and O-1 zoning districts. 

 
• The item is consistent with City Council Goal II (Retain and attract investment while 

encouraging redevelopment) and Goal VI (Protect life and property). 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Management recommends approval of the proposed text amendment, as recommended 

by the Planning Commission. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 227 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 227 Ambulance Facilities in M-1\Announce CC Public Hearing 11 13 06.doc 
 
 
 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT  

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article XXII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to eliminate 
Ambulance Facilities in the B-3 (General Business) District, to read as follows:  
 
22.20.00 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
22.20.03 Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching 

centers, and emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities. Sleeping 
accommodations may be provided in conjunction with ambulance 
facilities in order to accommodate not more than three employees per 
each vehicle storage bay. 

 
Section 3.  Amendment to Article XXIII of Chapter 39 
Article XXIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to 
eliminate Ambulance Facilities in the H-S (Highway Service) District, to read as 
follows:  
 
23.20.00 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
23.20.02 Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching 

centers, and emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities. Sleeping 
accommodations may be provided in conjunction with ambulance 
facilities in order to accommodate not more than three employees per 
each vehicle storage bay. 

 
Section 4.  Amendment to Article XXIV of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXIV of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to 
eliminate Ambulance Facilities in the O-1 (Low Ride Office) District, to read as 
follows:  



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   2

 
24.30.00 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
24.30.04 Private ambulance facilities may be permitted by the City Council, 

following a report and recommendation by the Planning Commission, 
when the Council determines that the establishment of the proposed 
use is necessary to serve the surrounding area, and when the 
following conditions are met: 

 
  A. Points of ingress and egress shall be laid out so as to 

minimize possible conflicts between traffic on and adjacent to 
the site. 

 
  B. Sleeping accommodations may be permitted in conjunction 

with such uses, to accommodate not more than two 
employees for each ambulance or emergency vehicle kept 
within the building, when such accommodations are 
determined to be necessary in order to provide 24-hour 
emergency service. 

 
  C. No servicing or repair of vehicles shall take place on the site, 

and no ambulances or emergency vehicles may be kept or 
stored outside the building. 

 
  D. The City Council may impose additional conditions and 

safeguards as it deems necessary to minimize any adverse 
effects of such uses on the surrounding areas. 

 
  E. The City Council may rescind approval in the event of violation 

of this Ordinance, or the creation of a public nuisance as 
defined in the City Code, subject to the following procedures: 

 
   1. The Chief Building Inspector shall notify the operator of 

any such violation or nuisance, with the condition that 
such shall be stopped within 10 days of such notice. 

 
   2. If such notice is not complied with, the City Council 

shall establish a public hearing on the matter. Following 
said hearing, the City Council shall take any 
appropriate action necessary to bring about 
compliance, which may include revocation of the use 
permitted by this Section. 

 
24.30.045 Utility Sub-Stations, Transformer Stations or Gas Regulator 

Stations (Without Storage Yards) subject to the following: 
 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   3

  A. The Planning Commission shall determine that 
operating requirements necessitate the location of 
such uses within the District in order to serve the 
immediate vicinity. 

 
  B. All proposed uses and facilities shall be contained 

within masonry buildings or structures similar to or 
compatible with buildings in adjacent or typical office 
areas. 

 
  C. Overhead transmission lines and tower structures 

supporting such lines are expressly prohibited from 
such sites. All lines serving such sites shall be 
underground. 

 
  D. In order to maximize the efficiency of the provision of 

utility services, while also minimizing the impact of 
such facilities on the total community, collocation, or 
the provision of more than one utility facility at a single 
location, may be required by the Planning 
Commission. In this regard, the applicant may be 
required to provide information regarding the feasibility 
of collocation at proposed sites.  

 
   1. Applications for the placement of freestanding 

tower structures and antennas under this 
Section, which do not involve collocation, shall 
be considered only in conjunction with a report 
from an independent qualified and licensed 
professional engineer, indicating reasons why 
collocation is physically or technically not 
feasible. 

 
  E. The setback for a freestanding communications 

antenna tower structure, from an abutting residentially 
zoned or used parcel, shall be at least equal to five (5) 
times the height of the structure. This setback 
requirement shall not apply to sites on which antenna 
tower structures were constructed prior to July 1, 1998. 

 
 F. Actions to approve the placement of freestanding 

tower structures and antennas under this Section shall 
be conditioned upon submittal, by the applicant, of 
financial assurances in a form acceptable to the City 
Manager, in order to assure that the subject facilities 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   4

will be removed from the site within one (1) year of the 
date that their use ceases. 

 
  (Rev. 10-05-98) 
 
24.30.056 Mechanical or Laboratory Research Involving Testing and Evaluation 

of Products, or Prototype or Experimental Product or Process 
Development. 

 
  A. Such research areas may be permitted only in office buildings 

developed within areas designated for the use of the Office 
Development Options, in accordance with Sections 36.00.00 
and 36.40.00 of this Chapter. 

 
  B. Such research areas shall occupy no more than twenty-five 

(25) percent of the gross floor area occupied by any individual 
or corporate office occupant or tenant, and shall be contiguous 
with the office area of the occupant or tenant. 

 
  C. Such research areas shall be located and designed so as to 

minimize any negative impact on adjacent office occupants 
from effects such as noise, dust, vibration and odor. 

 
  D. Such research activities shall not involve vehicles or engines 

containing fuel. 
 
  E. Such research activities shall be limited to uses which do not 

require building construction having a higher fire rating than 
that required for office uses. 

 
  (Rev 05-03-99) 
 
24.30.067 Childcare centers, nursery schools, or day nurseries (not including 

dormitories), subject to the following conditions: 
  A. For each child so cared for, there shall be provided and 

maintained a minimum of one hundred fifty (150) square feet 
of outdoor play area. Such play area shall have a total 
minimum area of not less than five thousand (5,000) square 
feet and shall be fenced or screened from adjoining 
properties in a manne4r acceptable to the Planning 
Commission. 

 
  B. The site layout shall be designated so as to minimize 

vehicular traffic conflicts both on and adjacent to the site and 
to provide the highest level of pedestrian/child safety within 
the site. 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   5

  (06-07-99) 
 
 
Section 5.  Amendment to Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended by adding 
provisions permitting Ambulance Facilities in the M-1 Light Industrial District, to 
read as follows:  
 
28.25.00 CONDITIONAL USES PERMITTED: 
   
28.25.07 Ambulance facilities, subject to the following conditions: 
 

A. There shall be a minimum distance of 300 feet between the 
ambulance facility property and any residential-zoned 
property. 

 
  B. Incidental uses such as administrative offices, vehicle 

maintenance and sleeping quarters shall be permitted within 
the ambulance facility.  

 
 
Section 6.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 7.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
 
 
 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department   6

Section 8.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 227 Ambulance Facilities in M-1\ZOTA 227 CC Public Hearing Draft 10 17 06.doc 



 
 
 
 
October 17, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Street Vacation (File Number: SV 148-C) – Portions of 

Daley Street abutting Lots 28 and 33 of Supervisors Plat No. 11 Subdivision, South of Big 
Beaver, North of I-75, Section 26 

 
 
Background: 
 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the November 13, 2006 City Council meeting. 
 
• The Daley Street public street easement is 50 feet wide.  The portion proposed to be vacated 

is approximately 135 feet in length. 
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on October 10, 2006, and 
recommended approval of the proposed street vacation.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to approve the street vacation request. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The street vacation would not eliminate public street frontage for any buildings along Daley; 

however, it appears that large trucks will be unable to back up onto the property unless they 
utilize a portion of the vacated street.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



• The item is consistent with City Council Goal II (Retain and attract investment while 
encouraging redevelopment) and Goal VI (Protect life and property). 

 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council may approve or deny the street vacation request.  
 
• City Management and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed street 

vacation, with the following conditions: 
 

1. Retention of all public and private utility easements. 
2. Retention of a public turnaround easement.   
3. Roadway will be kept clear of parked vehicles at all times. 

 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\STREET VACATION\SV 148-C Daley Street Sec 26\Announce CC Public Hearing 11 13 06.doc 
 
 
 









CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PARCEL



2873

2877

2868

1178

28502835

2852

D
A

LE
Y

STREET VACATION REQUEST
DALEY STREET
S OF BIG BEAVER, E OF ROCHESTER RD.
ZONED M-1   SEC. 26   (SV-148 C)

PROPOSED VACATION AREA

0 50 10025
Feet ³













































































 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
October 17, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
    Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Announcement of Public Hearing 
    Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5933 Diamond 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Commercial Vehicles, other than a pick-up truck or van are prohibited from being parked outside on 

residential property per Section 40.66.00 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
 Mr. Karim Abdal, the owner of the property at 5933 Diamond, parks a 2006 Chevrolet cutaway van, used 

for the commercial purpose of a heating and cooling business in the driveway of the home. 
 Mr. Abdal was notified of the violation on September 13, 2006, and was given the option of removing the 

vehicle or seeking an appeal of the parking restrictions. 
 On October 16, 2006, Mr. Abdal submitted an application seeking appeal. 
 A public hearing, as required by Section 44.02.01 of the Zoning Ordinance, is scheduled for November 27, 

2006 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations for this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to grant appeals of the restrictions for outdoor parking of commercial vehicles 

on residential property after a public hearing per Section 44.02.00 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Holding public hearings on matters considered for appeals allows the public to offer their comments and 

concerns to promote effective decision making. (Goal 3) 
 
Options: 
 
 There are no options for this item. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c





 



 



 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES - FINAL JUNE 29, 2006 
 

 1 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday June 29 , 2006 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Audre Zembrzuski, Vice-Chairman, called the meeting 
to order at 7:30 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Heather Eisenbacher 
   Kul B. Gauri 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Nancy Weeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
 
   Lauren Andreoff, Student Representative 
   Cheng Chen, Student Representative 
        
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-6-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of May 11, 2006 be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-06-02 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
Kul B. Gauri was introduced and welcomed to the Board. 
 
Election of Officers 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-06-03 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gauri 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES - FINAL JUNE 29, 2006 
 

 2 

 
RESOLVED, That the Library Advisory Board Officers shall be:  Lynne Gregory, 
Chairman; Heather Eisenbacher, Vice-Chairman; Nancy Wheeler, Secretary. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
There was no Regular Business. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The annual Public Library Trustee Association of Oakland County Spring Dinner was 
attended by Gauri, Gregory, Zembrzuski and Stoutenburg.   L. Brooks Patterson spoke 
on the Wireless Oakland Project.   
 
Meaghan Battle has been hired to replace Esther Cram who recently retired as 
Assistant Director for Public Services.  She will start on August 14, 2006. 
 
The Summer Reading Clubs for Youth, Teens and Adults are underway with a large 
number of signups during the first week. 
 
Board Member’s Comments. 
Eisenbacher asked about the exhibit sign.  A discussion about the exact language was 
held.  The sign shall read:  The Library cannot be involved in the sale of items on exhibit 
and no sales can take place within the Library.  For more information contact the 
exhibitor. 
 
Wheeler asked about the building expansion plans.  A discussion was held about 
possible roles that the Board could play.  The Friends of the Library was represented by 
Maria Hunciag and she outlined the intent of the Friends for an expansion or new facility 
and invited the Board to attend the Friends Building Committee meetings.  Gauri 
suggested that the Board gather data to support increased space such as a survey of 
patrons.  The Board decided to have this discussion continue at the September meeting. 
 
Zembrzuski asked if the Outreach Services Flyer could be more widely distributed, 
particularly to Seniors.  Gauri suggested distributing flyers also to the Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities. 
 
Student Representative’s Comments 
Andreoff and Chen expressed their farewell wishes to the Board.  Both are off to college 
in the fall and this would be their last meeting. 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-06-04 
Moved by Gauri 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES - FINAL JUNE 29, 2006 
 

 3 

RESOLVED, That Student Representatives Andreoff and Cheng are recognized 
for their important service to the Library Advisory Board. 
 
Yes:  5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative. 
Gregory reported that there was a major upgrade release of the Sirsi program in June.  
SLC had made application to the State to be part of the MelCat program.  Minor 
changes in the Personnel Policy were made.  Disposal of old PCs owned by SLC would 
take place according to policy. 
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library. 
Maria Hunciag talked about the Friend’s master plan “The Library of the Future”.  The 
Building Committee includes Tammy Duszynski, Eve Parsons, Mary Kerwin and herself.  
It’s a 5-10 year plan. 
 
Gifts. 
Two gifts totaling $65.00 were received. 
 
Informational Items. 
June and July TPL Calendars 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
7 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
A public comment was made asking that benches be installed at the front of the 
building. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:45 P.M. 
 

 
 
 

      _____________________________________ 
Audre Zembrzuski 
Vice-Chairman 
 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 

 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 10, 2006  

A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, July 10, 
2006 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    David S. Ogg 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Kelsey Brunette, Student Representative 
    Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Timothy P. Payne 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Godlewski, Hall, and Payne 
 
Resolution #LC2006-07-010  
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Godlewski, Hall, and Payne 
at the Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of July 10, 2006 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski, Hall, and Payne    
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of June 12, 2006 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2006-07-011 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the June 12, 2006 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski, Hall, and Payne   
 

 Page 1 of 11

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 10, 2006  

Agenda Items 
 
1. ZAKHO CHALDEAN SOCIAL CLUB, INC., requests a new club license 

with dance-entertainment permit to be located at 336 John R, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ# 330741] 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were John Yarimian and Raad 
Marougi. 
 
Mr. Marougi made the following statements to the Committee.  

 
 The Troy Manor Restaurant is approximately 4,500 square feet and 

has a capacity of 236 patrons.   
 They are requesting a club license to serve alcohol to members of 

their club.   
 The facility is open to the public until 5:00 p.m.  After 5:00 p.m., the 

club will be open only to members.   
 
Lt. Lyczkowski spoke on behalf of the Police Department and raised several 
issues of concern. 
 

 An inspection of the facility was performed by Sgt. Stout. 
 There was no permanent barrier in the facility to separate the public 

patrons from the club patrons, only a temporary wall was in place. 
 Public patrons would have to walk through club area to use 

restrooms. 
 Mr. Marougi reported that the club will only meet one to two times 

per week, yet 75% of the restaurant was designated for the club.  
The Police Department questions how they expect to make a profit. 

 Mr. Marougi has provided inconsistent information as to the purpose 
of the club license 
o Member meetings twice a week 
o Weddings, baby showers (which could include non-members 

who cannot be served alcoholic beverages with a club 
license) 

 Mr. Margougi has provided inconsistent membership information 
o The Police Department does not yet have a resolution from 

club members requesting a club license from the MLCC 
o Conflicting information has been provided regarding 

membership dues.  Mr. Marougi stated $150 per member and 
his attorney stated $100 per member.  This information is 
required in Troy PD Liquor License Questionnaire. 

 The building owner is delinquent on 2004 winter tax and 2005 
summer and winter taxes. 

 
 

 Page 2 of 11



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 10, 2006  

 The following briefly summarizes police reports for incidents at Troy 
Manor: 
o 03/19/05   

 Assault & Battery; physical confrontation between 
waiter and patron of restaurant 

o 08/04/05   
 Domestic felonious assault; confrontation between an 

employee and his wife 
o 01/17/06   

 Felonious assault with a knife; 100-150 people in the 
parking lot; disturbance originated inside at a party and 
continued outside; two citations were issued for minor 
in possession/consumption of alcohol 

 MLCC investigator confirmed that Troy Manor, Inc. applied for a 
Class C license in 2005.  When told that none were available, the 
Zakho Social Club applied for a club license. 

 An inspection of the outside trash was performed and an empty beer 
carton was found.  This is a concern since the establishment 
currently holds no liquor license. 

 The Police Department notes the disturbances that have occurred in 
the past with no liquor being served, and they have concerns about 
those increasing when liquor is available. 

 
Mr. Yarimian responded with the following statements: 
  

 He personally owes no property taxes since he is leasing the 
building. 

 They chose to not erect a permanent wall or barrier to enable them 
to accommodate different size groups. 

 Liquor will only be served to members of their private social club. 
 Their membership dues are $100 per person. 
 Their membership is currently at 60-70 people, but they expect it to 

grow significantly after they obtain a liquor license due to the large 
Chaldean community.  

 They anticipate constant parties which will earn large profits. 
 The violent disturbances that the Police Department mentioned 

began outside of the building. 
 The domestic violence incident had no direct connection to the club. 
 The intoxicated minors consumed liquor before they arrived at the 

club. 
 Patrons currently bring their own beer into the club. 
 The food service is their main objective and results in a large 

income. 
  
 
 

 Page 3 of 11



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 10, 2006  

In response to questions by Committee members, Assistant Attorney Chris 
Forsyth made the following statements: 
 

 According to the MLCC, in order to obtain a club license, all 
members of the club must be at least 21 years of age. 

 There is no requirement that the applicant secure the approval of 
51% of the business and residential neighbors within 500’ of the 
business.   

 Applicant must file with the MLCC a certified resolution at a club 
meeting where the members requested the club license.  Since this 
has not been done, this is a basis for denial. 

 There are several club licenses in Troy.  This location is totally 
different since the restaurant and the club blend together. 

 
The Committee members voiced the following concerns: 
 

 The establishment needs a Class C liquor license not a club license. 
 There are several procedural and structural issues. 
 The building owner is delinquent in payment of the property taxes. 

 
Resolution #LC2006-07-012 
Moved by Ehlert 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that ZAKHO CHALDEAN SOCIAL CLUB, INC., be denied their 
request for a new club license with dance-entertainment permit located at 336 
John R, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski, Hall, and Payne   
 
 
 
 

 Page 4 of 11



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 10, 2006  

2. CZARYD ENTERPRISES, INC., requests to transfer all stock in 2005 SDD 
and SDM licensed corporation by dropping John Czarnota as stockholder 
through transfer of 1000 shares of stock to existing stockholder, Stanley 
Rydzewski, sometime in 1986; and wherein sole stockholder, Stanley 
Rydzewski, transfers 2000 shares of stock to new stockholder, Daniel 
Rydzewski, to be located at 6990 John R, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County. 
[MLCC REQ# 276253] 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Stanley Rydzewski, Daniel 
Rydzewski, and Joseph Ciaramitaro.  
 
This business has been family owned and operated for 20 years.  Because of 
health reasons, Stanley Rydzewski wishes to sell the business to his son, Daniel 
Rydzewski, who has always worked there.  There are no non-family employees.  
All family members have been TIPS/TAMS trained.  There is no seating in the 
establishment, but they do sell small food items. 
 
Lt. Lyczkowski stated that the Police Department had no concerns with this 
transfer. 
 
Resolution #LC2006-07-013 
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that CZARYD ENTERPRISES, INC., be allowed to transfer all stock 
in 2005 SDD and SDM licensed corporation by dropping John Czarnota as 
stockholder through transfer of 1000 shares of stock to existing stockholder, 
Stanley Rydzewski, sometime in 1986; and wherein sole stockholder, Stanley 
Rydzewski, be allowed to transfer 2000 shares of stock to new stockholder, Daniel 
Rydzewski, to be located at 6990 John R, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski, Hall, and Payne   
 
 
 
 

 Page 5 of 11



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 10, 2006  

3. TROY, INC. requests to transfer ownership of 2005 Class C Licensed 
Business located at 1129 E. Long Lake, Troy, MI, 48085, Oakland County, 
from Ichibang Corporation, Inc.; and add new dance-entertainment permit.  
[MLCC REQ# 355382] 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were John Kallabat, Rachel 
Savaya, and Saadi Manjo. 
 
This is an item that was tabled from the June 12, 2006 meeting.   
 
Ms. Savaya stated: 
 

 Pursuant to last month’s discussion, she obtained signatures from 
over 50% of the businesses/residences within 500’ of the restaurant.  

 She also stated that she was interviewed by the Daily Tribune 
regarding her new establishment. 

 
Lt. Lyczkowski spoke on behalf of the Police Department and raised several 
issues of concern. 
 

 Ms. Savaya does not document any management experience in the 
liquor business on the Troy PD Liquor License Questionnaire.   

 Regarding the opinion of local residents, City Council has received 
two Emails from residents of the adjacent subdivision voicing 
opposition to a dancing/entertainment/nightclub establishment so 
close to a residential neighborhood.   

 An inspection of the outside and parking lot was performed by Lt. 
Lyczkowski and Sgt. Stout, and it was determined that there is a 
close proximity of the restaurant to homes on Mayberry and 
Abington; separated by only two rows of parking spaces and travel 
aisle of 75’-80’, and a 5.5’-6’ block wall. 

 Ms. Savaya’s husband has had several encounters with law 
enforcement 
o Felonious assault/MDOP; arrest 
o Felony weapon; arrest 
o Felony dangerous drugs; arrested for possession of 276 

pounds of marijuana 
 Subsequent search of his home located several rifles, 

shotgun, bullet-proof vest, book entitled “Drug 
Smuggling, the Forbidden Book” 

o Suspect in three other assaults 
 In Ms. Savaya’s 05/13/06 letter to the MLCC, she addresses some of 

her husband’s past contacts with police.   
 The Savaya’s filed a joint Federal Income Tax Return in 2005, 

showing a significant increase in income for Ms. Savaya.  The Police 
Department questions if Mr. Savaya’s money is being used for the 

 Page 6 of 11



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 10, 2006  

business.  Also, it is reasonable to expect that Mr. Savaya will 
frequent the establishment. 

 In previous years, our Department has responded to numerous calls 
at similar type establishments that no longer exist in the City of Troy.  
Calls for service included assaults, threats, weapons offenses, 
larcenies, destruction of property, disorderly conduct, LCC violations, 
and other liquor offenses.   

 
Mr. John Kallabat, Ms. Savaya’s attorney, responded as follows: 
 

 Ms. Savaya has been married for less than one year. 
 Mr. Savaya has his own businesses (scrap yard, gas stations, 

grocery stores, record producer) and will have no part in this 
business. 

 Money for start up of this venture came from savings accounts and 
gifts. 

 
Ms. Savaya had the following comments: 
 

 Her management experience comes from being involved in her 
father’s beer and wine sales business since she was a young girl. 

 Her husband will not be connected to her restaurant/nightclub in any 
way. 

 She will employ one cook and three to four servers (TIPS/TAMS 
trained).  She will act as manager/owner/hostess and will look to her 
father for guidance. 

 On Friday and Saturday nights, she plans to have live entertainment 
with dancing.  The music will be targeted to older people. 

 She will perform a sound study to confirm that music will not be too 
loud. 

 She stated that the music will not be very loud since there will be 
food served and conversation among the patrons. 

 She plans to open for lunch and dinner, with the kitchen closing at 
11:00 p.m. 

 
In response to questions by Committee members, Assistant Attorney Chris 
Forsyth made the following statements: 
 

 Mr. Savaya’s history is definitely of concern to the City. 
 He cited Pease v City Council of St. Clair Shores, 1978 Michigan 

Court of Appeals decision.  Case discusses factors a city should 
consider in approving an application of liquor license.  One factor is 
the moral character of applicant and the possibility of greater vices 
(gambling, fighting, drugs) existing on property.   

 
 

 Page 7 of 11



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 10, 2006  

Mr. Kallabat responded as follows: 
 

 Ms. Savaya is a good citizen. 
 Her husband’s background should not be considered; this is unfair 

since he was not convicted. 
 The joint tax return should not be an issue. 

 
Lt. Lyczkowski spoke again to reinforce the position of the Police Department that 
the following issues need to be considered: 
 

 Possession of Taser and guns 
 Possession of marijuana 
 Felonious assaults 

 
Also, Lt. Lyczkowski stated that: 
 

 While the sound study will confirm the volume of music, the police 
will more than likely be called by neighbors for unruly activity outside. 

 While an older crowd may be the target, similar businesses attract 
younger crowds. 

 While there are other such establishments in Troy, no others are in 
such close proximity to neighborhoods. 

 
Mr. Kallabat responded with the following comments: 
 

 Ms. Savaya will be targeting an older Chaldean crowd. 
 They are familiar with similar establishments in other cities and there 

are no problems. 
 Mr. Savaya’s background and history should not be taken into 

consideration as he will have no management connection with the 
business. 

 It is unfair to bring his history into the discussion. 
 
In response to questions by Committee members, Assistant Attorney Chris 
Forsyth made the following statements: 
 

 Ms. Savaya’s lack of management experience, both alcohol and 
general in nature, is of concern. 

 We must consider the business reputation, moral character, and 
neighborhood reaction. 

 
Committee members had the following comments/questions: 
 

 Would it be possible to approve the license transfer without the 
dance-entertainment permit?  Perhaps this would be a good option. 

 Why does the restaurant/club need to stay open until 2:00? 

 Page 8 of 11



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 10, 2006  

 Members are trying to be open-minded and allow a new 
entrepreneur to make an attempt at a new business, but issues are 
of a concern. 

 
Mr. Kallabat responded with the following comments: 
 

 Without the dance-entertainment permit Ms. Savaya could not 
possibly hit the target market. 

 Regarding the neighbors, everyone she spoke with agreed to her 
business. 

 Ms. Savaya will handle all the business matters with her father’s 
help. 

 
In response to questions by Committee member David Ogg, Assistant Attorney 
Chris Forsyth made the following statements: 
 

 The Committee cannot approve on a temporary basis, but could 
approve the Class C license transfer without the dance-
entertainment permit, or could approve the Class C license transfer 
with the dance-entertainment permit with conditions: 

 
o Review in one year before City Council for renewal or 

revocation 
o Husband, Simen Savaya, not allowed on premises 

 
Committee members proposed and discussed these further conditions: 
 

o Closing time will be 1:00 a.m. 
o Sound will not be carried to the neighborhood 

 
Lt. Lyczkowski again stated: 
 

 From past experience, late hours of operation result in more calls for 
service. 

 From the position of the Police Department, the business operation 
as described by Ms. Savaya has all of the elements that could result 
in problems experienced in other similar establishments.  Of course, 
the Police Department is in the position to respond to any problems, 
but this is an opportunity to prevent them in the first place. 

 
In response to questions by Committee members, Assistant Attorney Chris 
Forsyth made the following statements: 
 

 If City Council votes to revoke after one year, there will be a due 
process hearing. 

 Page 9 of 11



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 10, 2006  

 The matter will then be referred to the MLCC and they will follow the 
local legislative recommendations. 

 
 
Resolution #LC2006-07-014 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that TROY, INC. be allowed to transfer ownership of 2005 Class C 
Licensed Business located at 1129 E. Long Lake, Troy, MI, 48085, Oakland 
County, from Ichibang Corporation, Inc.; and add new dance-entertainment permit, 
with the following conditions:   
 

o Review in one year before City Council for renewal or 
revocation 

o Husband, Simen Savaya, not allowed on premises 
o Closing time will be 1:00 a.m. 
o Sound will not be carried to the neighborhood 

 
 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski, Hall, and Payne    
 
 
 
 

 Page 10 of 11



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 10, 2006  

Chris Forsyth stated that the function of this Committee was that of advisory or 
buffer.  He informed the Committee that by our next meeting he would have a 
model ordinance for review.  Then, this ordinance will go to City Council for 
approval or rejection.  
 
Mr. Ukrainec questioned the Hooters issue.  Mr. Forsyth explained that after City 
Council rejected the license transfer, Hooters filed suit against the City. 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 

 Page 11 of 11



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            AUGUST 14, 2006  

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, August 
14, 2006 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Committee member W. Stan Godlewski called the meeting to order 
at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Christopher Stout 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Kelsey Brunette, Student Representative 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert and Allemon 
 
Resolution #LC2006-08-015 
Moved by Payne 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ehlert and Allemon at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of August 14, 2006 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Allemon 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of July 10, 2006 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2006-08-016 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 

 Page 1 of 3

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            AUGUST 14, 2006  

RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the July 10, 2006 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Allemon 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. RCSH OPERATIONS, LLC (A LOUISIANA LIMITED LIABILTY 

COMPANY) requests to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C-SDM licensed 
business with dance permit and direct connections-3, located at 755 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from Prime Steak-Troy, LLC (A 
Louisiana Limited Liability Company) [MLCC REQ# 365039] (Ruth’s Chris 
Steak House) 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was attorney John Carlin. 
 
Mr. Carlin explained to the Committee that the parent company of Ruth’s Chris 
Steak House is buying out the largest franchisee in all their locations across the 
country.  As a result, all locations will be operated by the parent company.  They 
feel that this management will maintain their expected level of service and 
appearance.  The general manager and employees will not change.   
 
The parent company is also looking to expand in Michigan, possibly opening two 
additional locations. 
 
Resolution #LC2006-08-017 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that RCSH OPERATIONS, LLC (A LOUISIANA LIMITED LIABILTY 
COMPANY) be allowed to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C-SDM licensed 
business with dance permit and direct connections-3, located at 755 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from Prime Steak-Troy, LLC (A 
Louisiana Limited Liability Company)  
 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Allemon 
 

 Page 2 of 3



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            AUGUST 14, 2006  

Assistant City Attorney Chris Forsyth advised the Committee that the ordinance 
revisions would be presented at the September meeting.  He also stated that he 
would no longer be attending these meetings.  In September, Assistant City 
Attorney Allan Motzny will represent the City Attorney’s Office at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee Meetings.   
 
The Committee thanked Mr. Forsyth for his assistance. 
 
Mr. Forsyth updated the Committee on the Hooters litigation: 
 Hooters filed a Motion for superintended control to force City Council to 

approve their request 
 The Motion was denied 
 Hooters then filed an appeal seeking to reverse the decision of the Circuit 

Judge  
 The City feels that the Court of Appeals will uphold the decision 

 
 
Sergeant Christopher Stout advised the Committee that he has received two 
requests that will not require the Committee’s approval.  They are both requests 
for additional bars at Sanctuary Lakes Golf Course and Mon Jin Lau restaurant. 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:12 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            W. Stan Godlewski, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 

 Page 3 of 3



campbellld
Text Box
J-01d







PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:34 p.m. on September 26, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Fazal Khan 
Mary Kerwin Mark J. Vleck 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat  
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Rod Arroyo, Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc. 
Randy Metz, Grissim Metz Andreise Associates 
Davis Peterhans, C3 Community Core Creators 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-155 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan and Vleck are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-156 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented.  
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-157 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the September 12, 2006 Regular meeting minutes as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING (BZA) APPEALS REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on the September 19, 2006 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
meeting.   
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the September 20, 2006 Downtown Development Authority 
(DDA) meeting. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented the Planning and Zoning report. 
 
 

8. BIG BEAVER CORRIDOR STUDY PRESENTATION 
 
Rod Arroyo of Birchler Arroyo Associates led discussion of the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study, beginning with the key concepts listed on Page 38. 
 
General discussion of the document followed.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:00 p.m. 
 
[Ms. Drake Batts left at 9:00 p.m. due to illness.] 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:10 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 
Discussion on the Big Beaver Corridor Study continued. 
 
Richard Carlisle, Planning Consultant, Carlisle & Wortman Associates, presented 
short-term implementation items identified in the Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-158 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) commissioned a study 
focused on the continued vitality of the Big Beaver Corridor as a regional destination 
point and a world class boulevard; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has a vested interest in continued development and 
increasing the quality of life and other opportunities for our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, The key concepts of the document were adopted by both the 
Downtown Development Authority and City Council; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the key concepts included in the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study are hereby supported by the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts (left at 9:00 p.m.), Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
The Planning Commission thanked the project team for their hard work and 
excellent document. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – Article XXXV - 
Amendments to Planned Unit Development Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller updated the Planning Commission on the PUD provisions.  The PUD 
approval process is proposed to be modified so that projects can receive conceptual 
approval without the petitioner having to invest significant time and money into the 
project. 
 
A flow chart that summarizes the proposed PUD approval process was discussed. 
 
Mr. Miller indicated that a draft text amendment would be prepared and presented 
to the Planning Commission in the near future. 
 
 

10. VENUE FOR NOVEMBER 7, 2006 SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING AND 
ESTABLISHMENT OF 2007 MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
The Planning Commission discussed this item and the conflict with the General 
Election.  They agreed to hold the November 7, 2006 meeting at the Police and Fire 
Training Center. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-159 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, There is a Planning Commission Special/Study meeting scheduled for 
November 7, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, There will be no meeting rooms available in Troy City Hall on 
November 7, 2006 because of the General Election;    
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission shall hold its 
Special/Study meeting on November 7, 2006, at the Police and Fire Training 
Center, located at 4850 John R, Troy, MI. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts (left at 9:00 p.m.), Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-160 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves the City Planning 
Commission calendar for 2007 as presented, with the exception that the following 
dates shall be deleted: January 2, 2007, July 3, 2007, and September 4, 2007, 
because of conflicts with national holidays. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts (left at 9:00 p.m.), Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

11. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212-B) – Articles 25.00.00, 
26.00.00, 27.00.00 – Improving design and strengthening the relationship of 
freestanding restaurants, day care centers and banks with the abutting streets in the 
R-C, O-M, and O-S-C Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented this item.  It was agreed that Mr. Waller would assist the 
Planning Department in preparing provisions that require more sustainable design 
elements, including definitions of these elements.   
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-161 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Drake-Batts is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Mr. Schultz discussed the City of Palm Desert, California, and their requirements that 
developers contribute to a fund for public art. 
 
Mr. Waller indicated that the City of Loveland, Colorado, has a similar program.  
 
Ms. Kerwin indicated that she believes the public would support landscaping and public 
art.  She also announced dates and times for the Grand Opening of the Boys and Girls 
Club of Troy. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Mr. Miller talked about the upcoming Comprehensive Plan process. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\09-26-06 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   September 27, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on September 27, 2006 at 7:00 PM 
at the Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Katie Thoenes and Rishi Joshi called the 
meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski  

Andrew Corey 
Maxine D’Amico  
Ales Gabriel 
Rishi Joshi (Co-chair) 
Jessica Kraft  
Joseph Niemiec 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall  
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes (Co-chair) 
Karen Wullaert (Secretary) 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Nicole Vitale 
VISITORS: Sandy Macknis, Troy Daze Committee 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2006-09-12 
  Moved by   Prasad 
  Seconded by  Kraft 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of August 23, 2006 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 12 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1  - Vitale 
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Updated through September 2006.  Reviewed by council members, no 
comments.   

 
4.   Futures Process: 

 No update at this time.  Final report has not been completed. 
 
5. Visitor:  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director.   

Presentation covered the topic of undeveloped parkland.  Anderson reviewed 
the parcels, what the community requested in each parcel, funding and 
timeline for development.    

  
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   September 27, 2006 
 
 

 2

6. Troy Daze Festival: 
-Youth Council reviewed 2006 event and expressed the following concerns: 

  -Viewed inappropriate images on prizes and on rides. 
-Image of Troy Daze as a family friendly event with pornographic 
images on rides. 
-Violence will happen any time and suggested having tightened 
security. 
-Disappointed in hours, friends get off of work at 9:30pm and are unable 
to attend due to 10:00pm closing time. 
-Parking system needs to be evaluated. Lots are too small to 
accommodate traffic and better communication is needed regarding 
parking procedures. 
-Surveys from age 30+ attendees preferred the 10:00pm closing time 
and every teen survey preferred the 11:00pm closing time. 
-D’Amico to draft a letter to present to Troy Daze Committee regarding 
concerns with rides, parking and hours. 

 
7.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2006-09-13 

  Moved by  Wullaert 
  Seconded by  Niemiec 

  
 RESOLVED that Anupama Prasad, Katie Thoenes (late) are excused. 

  Yes:  12 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 – Vitale  
 
8.  Youth Council Comments –  

-None. 
 
9. Public Comments –  

-None. 
 
10. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:46 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Katie Thoenes, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: November 29 at 7:00 P.M. @ Troy Community Center 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                           OCTOBER 4, 2006 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, October 4, 2006 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Tim Richnak 
   Rick Sinclair 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 6, 2004 
 
Motion by Sinclair 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of September 6, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  NORM MORTON, 1785 CRESTLINE, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 48” high chain link fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” 
high chain link fence.  This property is a double front corner lot.  As such, it has front 
yard setback requirements along both Crestline and Crimson.  Chapter 83 limits the 
height of fences in front setbacks at this location to not more than 30”.  The site plan 
submitted indicates a 48” high chain link fence in the front yard setback along Crimson. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Norm Morton were present.  Mr. Morton said that he became concerned 
when his nephew was playing football and went after a ball that went into the street.  Mr. 
Morton said he is very concerned about the safety of his children.  Furthermore, the 
Morton’s have a dog and this fence would keep the dog contained in their yard.  This 
home is located along one of the main entrances to the subdivision and there is a lot of 
traffic.  Mr. Morton also said that he had spoken to his surrounding neighbors and they 
did not object to this fence. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                           OCTOBER 4, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had spoken to the neighbor directly behind their home.  Mr. 
Morton indicated that he had and this neighbor had no objection as long as the existing 
pine trees were to remain.   
 
Mr. Kessler said that he had noticed other homes in this subdivision that had fences that 
go to the sidewalk, and feels they are very noticeable as you go into the subdivision.  
Mr. Kessler explained that this Board tries to have fences located away from the 
sidewalk and screened by extra landscaping so that they do not have an impact on 
surrounding neighbors.  Mr. Kessler also suggested that the petitioner place this fence 
inside the tree line, which would provide screening. 
 
Mr. Morton said that if he put the fence in this location it would make it difficult to 
maintain the trees and the existing grass. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he can appreciate the maintenance issue, but the Board has to 
look for a hardship that runs with the land in order to grant a variance, and maintenance 
in his opinion would not be such an issue.  When a variance is granted, the Board wants 
it to have the minimum impact to the surrounding residents.  Mr. Richnak suggested that 
Mr. Morton spray something around this area so that the grass would not grow.   
 
Mr. Kessler suggested that additional ground cover be added in the area.  Mr. Kessler 
said that he believes there is enough space available that the fence can be put behind 
the tree line rather than in front of the trees. 
 
Mr. Richnak suggested two different types of ground cover that could be put in that 
would be inexpensive, low maintenance, and would fill the area in. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how Mr. Morton felt about these suggestions and Mr. Morton said 
that he would be willing to do whatever the Board suggested.  Mr. Morton presented a 
map showing other fences in the area. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that four (4) of the homes shown on this map were not double 
front corner lots and the Ordinance did not have the same restrictions on them that were 
on this property. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to grant Norm Morton, 17895 Crestline, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” 
high chain link fence. 
 

• Fence will be erected on the north side of the three (3) closest pine trees to 
Crimson. 

• No additional landscaping will be required. 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                           OCTOBER 4, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JOE NOVITSKY, JSN ARCHITECTS, 
REPRESENTING SAIF JAMEEL, 2987 CROOKS ROAD, for relief of the 2003 
Michigan Building Code. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is the architect representing the owner of the 
gasoline station located at the southwest corner of the intersection of Crooks Road and 
Big Beaver Road.  The owner is in the process of adding a brick veneer on the exterior 
of the existing building.  Unfortunately, the work was begun without first obtaining a 
building permit.  This is in part, due to a misunderstanding of the scope of work of the 
project between the owner and Building Department staff.  The existing building is a 
pre-manufactured modular building, which is placed upon a cast in place concrete 
trench footing.  A concrete sidewalk surrounds the building.  Rather than installing the 
brick veneer directly upon the foundation as required by the Building Code, the brick is 
being installed on top of the sidewalk.  The petitioner is asking for approval to install the 
brick veneer on top of the sidewalk in lieu of directly upon the foundation based upon 
the specific conditions of the site as outlined in the appeal application. 
 
Mr. Joe Novitsky of JSN Architects, and Mr. Saif Jameel, the owner of the property were 
present.  Mr. Novitsky stated that when putting in these veneers they want to protect the 
area from heave and settlement and he believes that will not happen on this site.  If they 
cut around the building it will break up the continuity.  The footings are all formed up and 
are free floating.  When they saw cut an area they found that there was between 4’ and 
6’ of sand on the entire site, which allows the ground water to migrate through and that 
would minimize inevitable heaving.  Mr. Novitsky does not believe there is any reason to 
stop the construction at this point.  This would be a radical improvement for this site and 
would not cause safety or health issues even though it does not meet the Code.  Mr. 
Novitsky also stated that he believes adding a foundation would create more problems. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked what type of sand was under the structure and how far it extended 
from the structure.  Mr. Novitsky said he had no idea what kind of sand it was, although 
he believes it is standard mason sand, very coarse and deep brown in color.  Very 
reputable contractors have told him that this is a very stable site.   
 
Mr. Zuazo asked how far the sand was from the perimeter of the building and Mr. 
Novitsky stated he thought it was roughly 2’ to 3’, but was unable to be 100% sure 
unless they cut into the cement. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the “dog-bone” foundations underneath the canopy.  Mr. 
Stimac explained that the drawings show a canopy-footing about one foot below the 
paving.   

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                           OCTOBER 4, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if all of the columns had been bricked at this time and Mr. Novitsky 
stated that about 75% of the work is complete.  Mr. Dziurman asked if they also wanted 
to put up the brick around the islands and Mr. Novitsky stated that they did. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that they could get footings around the foundation.  Mr. Novitsky said 
that there is about 6” of compacted sand around the “dog-bone”. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what they are proposing around the island and Mr. Novitsky said that 
they don’t want to cut it.  Mr. Novitsky said that cutting it could cause a negative effect 
on the foundation.  They would like to keep it sealed and let them indemnify the City and 
allow him to take responsibility for this action. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that if they went 12” around the columns, they could cut away and put 
in 6” of concrete.  Mr. Kessler also asked what the life expectancy of the pumps was.  
Mr. Novitsky said that the foundations were installed in1995 and were recently removed 
and replaced.  In ten (10) years they could be looking at new style pumps.  At that time 
the islands would have to be re-worked.  Mr. Kessler said this would be the ideal time to 
isolate the columns.  Mr. Novitsky said he did not think that would be a problem. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that they could cut 12” out around each columns.  Mr. Novitsky said 
that he thinks this is a very stable site and would yield to whatever decisions the Board 
makes.  If they took it all down and put in a footing, Mr. Novitsky believes it would 
weaken the site and make it less stable. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had gone around the entire perimeter of the building to look for 
settlement and heaving.  Mr. Novitsky said that he had looked everywhere and did not 
see any denigration in the site anywhere.  This is an amazingly stable site. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he had looked over this site and found cracking at either side of 
the door to the car wash. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked about using shelf angles to support the brick?  Mr. Novitsky said 
that they would look terrible and since this is a light gage metal frame building they 
would have worry about the fasteners failing, which would cause collapsing.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked about brick flashing.  Mr. Novitsky said that there is a flashing, but 
the only problem is that it’s tucked behind the siding. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if there was a sufficient gap to allow for movement on the area 
between the metal and the aluminum windows.  Mr. Novitsky said that there is very little 
space and it would have to be caulked.  Mr. Kessler asked if the windows would be able 
to withstand heaving.  Mr. Novitsky said that the brick would heave independently. 
 
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                           OCTOBER 4, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the conditions of the site were.  Mr. Novitsky stated that the 
entire site is paved.  Mr. Kessler said that the front area is under a large canopy that 
protects it from the weather.  Mr. Kessler asked if you could see that the structure 
around the perimeter sits on the footing.  Mr. Novitsky said that he had exposed an area 
and you can actually feel the edge of the sidewalk resting on the footing. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that Rob Winkelman, Building Inspector, said that the front door did 
not open properly and asked if this was from heaving.  Mr. Novitsky said that there is no 
evidence of heaving, but believes it is caused by the denigration of the threshold. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated if the island curbs are replaced again, the brick would have to come 
down and be replaced.   
 
Mr. Sinclair asked if the columns were all bricked.  Mr. Novitsky said that two are and 
four are not.   
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he did not feel the petitioner should have to correct the two 
columns that are already bricked, but that the other four columns should have the brick 
put on them correctly and that would include a footing. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to grant Joe Novitsky, JSN Architects, representing Saif Jameel, 2987 Crooks 
Road, relief of the 2003 Michigan Building Code to add brick veneer to an existing 
building with the following stipulations: 
 

• The two (2) columns that are already bricked will be saw-cut to isolate them 
from the islands. 

• The four (4) remaining columns that do not have brick will have footings down to 
pier foundations. 

• Under all aluminum window frames, space will be left to allow for movement and 
heaving. 

• A “Hold Harmless” letter will be provided from the petitioner indicating, that the 
City, this Board, and any members of the City Staff will not be held responsible 
for any lawsuits or damages resulting from approval of this variance. 

 
 Yeas:  4 – Kessler, Richnak, Sinclair, Zuazo 
Nays:  1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that he is awaiting documentation from a petitioner 
asking that this Board hold a special meeting.  Basically the petitioner is asking to have 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                           OCTOBER 4, 2006 

a special event sign up for a period that would exceed the seven (7) day limit allowed by 
the Ordinance.  Because this request is for a sign, there is a fourteen (14) day 
requirement to allow the Building Department to notify property owners within 300’ of 
the subject property.  Mr. Stimac asked if there would be a quorum of Board members 
to hold this meeting on Wednesday, October 18, 2006, assuming proper paperwork is 
received from the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that he might not be available on that date. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:28 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 6



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft October 11, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, October 11, 2006, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice   
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 Phillip L. Nelson 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
    
ABSENT: Martin F. Howrylak 
 William R. Need (Ex-Officio)  
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 10 - 038 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That Martin F. Howrylak and William R. Need be excused. 
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 10 - 039 
Moved by Pallotta   
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the September 13, 2006 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – PRIOR GOVERNMENTAL SERVICE CREDIT 
 
The board received and filed the requests of Kim Swails, Joseph Mairorano and Gerald 
Kerezi. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft October 11, 2006 
 
 

 2

INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 10 - 040 
Moved by Nelson  
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board buy the following securities:   
 
 
Buy:  $1,000,000 Alliance Bernstein International Value Fund 
  $700,000 ING International Value Fund 
  $1,000,000 John Hancock International Core Fund 
 
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
 
The next meeting is November 8, 2006 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 12:58 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2006\10-11-06 Minutes_Draft.doc 



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT
 

 
October 17, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:   Quarterly Financial Report, September 30, 2006 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Section 8.6 of Chapter 8 of the City Charter requires a quarterly financial report be provided to 

City Council. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
Options: 
 
 This report is submitted for Council to note and file.  I am happy to provide additional information 

or answer any questions that might arise.   Providing the quarterly financial report relates to 
Council Goal III, “Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally”. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
jml/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\10.23.06 - Quarterly Financial Report, September 30, 2006 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



































11/13 PH E-6 CDBG 2007 App.
11/13 PH SV 148-C Daley St.

11/13 PH  ZOTA  227 Amb. Fac. B-3, H-S, O-1, M-1 Dist.
11/27 PH Comm. Veh.App. 5933 Diamond

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

October 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

November 2006October 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun

October 1

2
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

3
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

4
8:30am BUILDING CODE 

BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

5 6 7

8

9 10
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11 12 13 14

15

16
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

17
3:00pm Brownfield 

Redevelopment  
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

18
7:30am CANCELLED DDA 

Meeting (Conference 
Room Lower Level)

19 20 21

22

23
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

24
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

25 26 27 28

29

30 31

mccombca
Text Box
J-05



11/13 PH E-6 CDBG 2007 App.
11/13 PH SV 148-C Daley St.

11/13 PH  ZOTA  227 Amb. Fac. B-3, H-S, O-1, M-1 Dist.
11/27 PH Comm. Veh.App. 5933 Diamond

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

November 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

December 2006November 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
November 1

8:30am BUILDING CODE 
BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

2 3 4

5

6 7
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

8 9 10 11

12

13
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

14
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

16 17 18

19

20 21
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

22 23
City Hall Closed

Thanksgiving

24 25

26

27
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

28
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

29 30



11/13 PH E-6 CDBG 2007 App.
11/13 PH SV 148-C Daley St.

11/13 PH  ZOTA  227 Amb. Fac. B-3, H-S, O-1, M-1 Dist.
11/27 PH Comm. Veh.App. 5933 Diamond

S M T W T F S
1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

December 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

January 2007December 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
December 1 2

3

4
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

5
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

6
8:30am BUILDING CODE 

BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7 8 9

10

11 12
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

13 14 15 16

17

18
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

19
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

20
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

21 22
City Hall Closed

23

24

25
City Hall Closed

26 27 28 29
City Hall Closed

30

31



campbellld
Text Box
J-06









































































































































































































































 
 
 
To:  The Mayor & City Council 
From: Phil Nelson, City Manager 
Subject: Ethics Information 
Date: October 17, 2006 
 
At the request of Councilmember Lambert, staff has gathered a considerable 
amount of information concerning governmental ethics.  Attached are copies of 
the Birmingham Ethics Ordinance, and ethics principles and guidelines 
developed by the Josephson Institute Government Ethics Center. 
 
In 2005, Legal staff did an extensive amount of research on what other Michigan 
cities have done concerning ordinances or policies.  Staff did not provide copies 
of the Power Point presentation due to the length of the slide show.  If the 
Council wants to review the information, staff can have the materials available 
during your study session. 
 
After you review the attached information, and you have questions, please 
contact the City Attorney or me at your convenience. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01




















































	AGENDA: October 23, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Proclamation Celebrating 60 Years – Presented to John Drew, 


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Request for the Establishment of an Industrial Developme
	C-2 Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilit
	C-3 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z 714) – Proposed The

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	Celebrating 60 Years – Kelly Services

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bi�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Pr�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: R�
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	f\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Be�

	E-5 Macy*s Fireworks Permit Application
	E-6 Request for Acceptance of Six Warranty Deeds for Caswell
	E-7 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Dis
	F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host – 

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 227) – Ar
	Street Vacation (File Number: SV 148-C) – Portions of Daley 
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5933 Diamond – November 27, 2006

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Library Advisory Board/Final – June 29, 2006
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – July 10, 2006
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – August 14, 2006
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – Septe
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – September 26, 2006
	Troy Youth Council/Draft – September 27, 2006
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – October 4, 2006
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – Octob

	J-2 Department Reports:
	City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – September 30, 2006

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted
	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Preliminary Report from the Historic Homes Study Commit

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Ethics Policy

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested




